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Appendix C
APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019
V I CTO R lA (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

IDENTIFICATION OF APPLICANT: abig The Elizabeth Buclday Lhoof

Iy leasee. The g{ands o Summev (amp - Opet ‘
Orgggig:%onynage: 5{9{3 *I_&_.; WY '_‘Zﬁg’ grggga (eabe fov the ﬁim:&

Are you registered under the Societies Act? Yes No D
Are you a registered charity? Yes No
C i .
Mailing Address: o The Cridge Cenbre - 13071 Huiksiile_Ayenue (opera les 1309 Hllsdle Arenae)
£B8S = Melisse Pl £B8S Inelisse Phillips
Contact Person: Cridge = Shelley moif1s Email Address: < (8 /(6?6:0(5
S RE0 45~ bHA5 C6S - 250 495~ bA
Telephone Number:CLgig‘Lgfﬁ =495 -~ pHOS Fax Number: - 380 384 547

Preferred method of application reminder: Email D Mail

PROPERTY (complete a separate form for each property)

Folio Number,___ 0858 00 Address:___ 1190 kmqs ‘Q()CLC’
Legal Description: % a‘Had\c}i

Registered Owner (if different than above):__ ”lQ Q;f zdc;g, (Z’Qb’& Q}I Hg Eimﬂ;(

ABOUT YOQUR ORGANIZATION: Please provide a brief description of the goals and
objectives of the organization.

The Elizabetk Bucdey School's puspese 18 fo dewbp cribicat Hhinkiss adepladl
and fesponsible Cifzenship 10 thet ghudeats Kindevaaiken fo Gude s, TFisan

(ot fag; gchod! for Ha deaf | harel of heating P}'\‘g‘s’tcﬂlj\; cisabled, niellechually
disabled and fypical childen.

The Crulie (eake for He Familys purpose 15 fo rerder awd and Serviees 40
chiden | adults and Gamilies fo makimize Herr %ur#unhef- © mel
Our P pbse we. offer guppolt ) coungel | edducakion | provide howsiny and oy our chenls

PRINCIPAL USE OF THIS PROPERTY: Please provide a brief description of the principal

use of the property and how this use benefits the community.

Mhe Elizabet Buckley School - non-profit independent school leases
Hvee roons flom The Cridge (ealve for the Faaily jo povide K,ngl@/ga/}m
0 Grade 5 for chidren oéﬂ all abilites. %rhﬁn‘? with ’g\e ’Cfcd{;ﬂ
(eate @f Ht Famil boﬁ\ neres gerve and qupﬂ man i ;@ﬁ'm‘-
comme, - Gilowing cyh:ld/m %WCM\ needs fo transihow %m/essly betweer
bele schadl care | &chool and after shool Cate:



APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

V | CTO R IA (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

5. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY: Please provide a brief description of any commercial activities
that your organization conducts on this property.

The Ehzaberh Buckley School charges duchion fees.

6. LEASED SPACE: Please attach any and all lease agreements for any portion of the
identified property that your organization rents or leases to another organization or individual. aW“

7. CATEGORY: Please select the applicable permissive tax exemption category for which you
are applying. For further explanation of permissive tax exemption categories please read the
full text of the Permissive Tax Exemption policy found at www.victoria.ca/permissive.

Social Service D Arts & Cultural Facility D
Place of Worship D Athletic/Recreational Facility D
Rail/Track Property ':I

Educational Facility: Independent School Classification: Group 1 E] ZD 3|:| 4 D

Supportive Housing
e Temporary or transitional housing

e Treatment program
« Permanent facility
e Supportive staff

e Group home

[ [

e Special needs/disability housing

8. PUBLIC ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: All recipients of City of Victoria permissive tax exemptions

are required to publicly acknowledge the exemption. How does your organization plan on
publicly acknowledging the exemption?

The Elzabeih Eud.dey School will pos¥ b oon Yhit wieksite.



APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

VI CTO R1 A (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

9. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Attach your most recent financial statements.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP: Do you plan on selling any portion of the property during
2017 — 20197

Yes D No E

11. DECLARATION:

| am an authorized signing officer of the organization and | certify that the information given in
this application is correct. Should a permissive tax exemption be granted on the above listed
property, | agree to the following terms:

s If the property is sold prior to the exemption expiration, the organization will remit to the
City an amount equal to the taxes that would have otherwise been payable to the City by
a non-exempt owner.

« The property use will be in compliance with all applicable municipal policies and bylaws.
he organization will publicly acknowledge the permissive tax exemption granted by the

r )
VA _(€0
osition
Ihelley Mofyis Moy 95, 2018
Name (please’ print) Date / ’
e
Wm‘é’&“‘f (i EBS Boacd fresidet
Signatuce Pesihon.

Mdisse Phillps Nagas ™ a0

Name Date.



2. PROPERTY

Legal Description:

Lot 28, Section 4, Victoria District, Plan 263, except those parts
thereof shown coloured red on plans deposited under DD 261771
and DD253321 and except part in Plan 10551 and 41022 (1190
Kings Road)



The Cridge
Centre for
the Family

LEASE SUMMARY

THIS LEASE SUMMARY is attached to and forms part of the Indenture of Lease dated for
reference, September 1, 2014.

BETWEEN:
THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY
1307 Hillside Avenue
Victoria, B.C. V8T OA2
(the "Landlord")
AND:

THE HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
1309 Hillside Avenue

Victoria, B.C. V8T 2B3
(the "Tenant")

ARTICLE OR CLAUSE

Schedule A Civic Address of the Premises:
Elizabeth Buckley School
1309 Hillside Avenue
Victoria, B.C. V8T 2B3

I.1 Area of the Premises:
2,000 square feet, more or less,

1.1 and 3 Term:
Five (5) years
(Except as provided in clausell)

.1 Commencement Date:
September 1, 2014



1.1 Expiry Date:
August 31, 2019

4.1 Annual Basic Rent Commencing: September 1, 2009, and
terminating: August 31, 2014, payable as follows:

PERIOD PER ANNUM PER MONTH
September 1, 2014 to $39,924.00 $3,327.00
August 31, 2015

September 1, 2015 to $40,716.00 $3,393.00
August 31,2016

September 1, 2016 to $41,736.00 $3,478.00
August 31, 2017

September 1, 2017 to $42.,984.00 $3,582.00
August 31,2018

September 1, 2018 to $ 44,280.00 $ 3,690.00

August 31,2019

6.1 Use of Premises:
School, kindergarten and summer (day) camp base

16.4 Landlord's Address for Rent Payments and Notices:

1307 Hillside Avenue
Victoria, B.C. V8T OA2

16.4 Tenant's Address for Notices:
1305 Hillside Avenue
Victoria, B.C. V8T 2B3
16.19 Deposit: nil

16.20 Renewal option: nil



Schedules:

Schedule A-Sketch Plan of Demised Premises
THIS LEASE made as of September 1, 2014

BETWEEN:
THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY a society incorporated
under the laws of British Columbia under incorporation number S-9
(the "Landlord")
AND:
THE HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY a society incorporated
under the laws of British Columbia under incorporation number S-29776
(the "Tenant")
1. DEFINITIONS

[.1

(2)
(®)

(©

(d)

(e)

The Landlord and the Tenant hereby agree that in this Lease the following words or
phrases shall, unless there is something in the context inconsistent therewith, have

the meanings hereinafter set out:

"Additional Rent': nil

"Annual Basic Rent" shall mean the amount specified as such in the Lease
Summary as amended by written agreement of the Landlord and the Tenant from

time to time;

"Area of the Premises" shall mean the aggregate of the areas specified in the Lease
Summary, which areas shall be measured from the exterior face of exterior walls and
the centre line of any internal demising walls, without deduction for any columns or

projections;

"Building" shall mean all buildings and improvements erected or to be erected on
the Land;

"Commencement Date" shall mean the date specified as such in the Lease
Summary;
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(h)
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(m)

"Common Areas and Facilities'" shall mean all of the Land and the Building
including, without limitation, the Roof, exterior and interior walls and structural
elements including bearing walls, electrical, plumbing, drainage, mechanical, and
other installations or services as well as the structures housing the same, fire
prevention and communication systems, loading areas, parking areas, driveways,
landscaped areas, retaining walls, washrooms (other than washrooms within the
Premises or within other premises leased to tenants), a playground area and all
fixtures, general signs, lighting facilities, improvements, equipment, and installations
thereupon or therein which the Landlord provides or designates from time to time for
the general use by or for the benefit of the Tenant in common with other tenants and
other persons permitted by the Landlord; provided however that the Common Areas
and Facilities shall exclude all of the Rentable Area, whether or not leased to tenants,
and it shall further exclude all areas of the Land in respect of which the Landlord has
granted to the Tenant or any other tenant an exclusive easement or an easement in
common only with the Landlord;

"Environmental Laws" means any statutes, laws, regulations, orders, bylaws,
standards, guidelines, permits, and other lawful requirements of any governmental
authority having jurisdiction over the Premises now or hereafter in force relating in
any way to the environment, health, occupational health and safety, or transportation
of dangerous goods, including the principles of common law and equity;

"Expiry Date" shall mean the date specified as such in the Lease Summary;

"GST" means the tax levied under Part IX of the Excise Tax Act (Canada) as the
same may be amended or substituted from time to time;

"Hazardous Substance" or "Hazardous Substances" means any pollutants,
contaminants, deleterious substances, underground or above-ground tanks, asbestos
materials, hazardous, corrosive, or toxic substances, special waste or waste of any
kind, or any other substance which is now or hereafter prohibited, controlled or
regulated under Environmental Laws;

"Insurance Costs" shall mean all premiums and other amounts which the Landlord
may expend in effecting or maintaining insurance coverage under the provisions of
this Lease;

"Land" shall mean all and singular that certain parcel or tract of land described in
Schedule A;

"Landlord" shall mean the owner or the mortgagees in possession for the time
being of the Premises only during and in respect of their respective periods of
interest in the Premises;
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"Landlord's Mortgagees" shall mean any and all existing or proposed mortgagees,
debenture-holders, and trustees on behalf of mortgagees holding any Mortgages;

"Lease" shall mean this indenture together with the Lease Summary and all
schedules attached hereto;

"Leasehold Improvements" means all fixtures (other than the Tenant's trade
fixtures), improvements, additions, partitions, equipment, and alterations from time
to time made to or installed in the Premises by any person;

"Lease Summary" shall mean pages one and two attached to and forming part of
this Lease and headed "Lease Summary";

"Mortgages" shall mean all mortgages, debentures, deeds of trust, and mortgages
securing bonds and all instruments and indentures supplemental thereto which may
now or hereafter charge the Land and Premises, and all renewals, modifications,
consolidations, replacements, and extensions thereof;

"Premises” shall mean the portion of the Building shown outlined in red and
identified as "Cridge Childcare Facility" on the plan attached hereto as Schedule A,
together with the Leasehold Improvements and window glass

"Prime Rate" means the rate of interest, expressed as an annual rate, at the relevant
time or times, established by the Landlord's Bank at its main branch in Vancouver,
British Columbia, as a reference rate for commercial loans in Canadian dollars to its
best commercial customers and commonly referred to by the said Bank as its "prime

rate";

"Release" includes release, spill, leak, pump, pour, emit, discharge, eject, escape,
leach, dispose, or dump;

"Rent" shall mean the Annual Basic Rent and the Additional Rent;

"Rentable Area" shall mean the total area expressed in square feet or its metric
equivalent of space set aside by the Landlord for leasing to tenants of the Building,
as may be amended by the Landlord from time to time;

"Roof" shall mean the roof membrane, roof insulation, and roof deck of the
Building;

"Sign" shall mean any sign, picture, notice, lettering, direction, or other advertising
or informational device of whatever nature;



@)

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

2.

"Tenant's Taxes" shall mean all taxes, fees, levies, charges, assessments, rates,
duties, and excises which are now or may hereafter be levied, imposed, rated, or
assessed by any lawful authority relating to or in respect of the business of the
Tenant or relating to or in respect of personal property and all business and trade
fixtures, machinery and equipment, cabinet work, furniture, and movable partitions
owned or installed by the Tenant at the expense of the Tenant or being the property
of the Tenant, or relating to or in respect of the Leasehold Improvements or other
improvements to the Premises built, made, or installed by the Tenant, on behalf of
the Tenant or at the Tenant's request, whether any such amounts are included by the
taxing authority in the Taxes;

"Term" shall mean the term specified in the Lease Summary;

"Transfer" shall mean any transfer, assignment, charge, mortgage, sublease,
license, sharing of possession, parting with possession, or any other disposition of
this Lease or any estate or interest therein or the Premises or any part thereof,
including without limitation a transfer by operation of law;

"Transferee" shall mean any person to whom a Transfer is made or intended to be
made; and

"Utility Costs" shall mean all charges for water, gas, electric light and power, and
all other utilities and services used on or in respect of the Premises or any part
thereof (excluding telephone charges) whether separately metered to the Premises or
as allocated by the Landlord, acting reasonably to the Premises together with all
costs and charges for all fittings, machines, apparatus, meters, and any other thing
leased or supplied in respect thereof and all costs and charges for all work and
services performed by any corporation, authority, or commission in connection with
such utilities and services in respect of the Premises, whether separately charged to
the Premises or allocated by the Landlord, acting reasonably, to the Premises.

THE DEMISE

In consideration of the rents, covenants, conditions, and agreements hereinafter respectively
reserved and contained, the Landlord hereby leases to the Tenant the Premises, subject to
the easements and rights-of-way now registered against the title to the Land and any future
easements and rights-of-way which may be registered against title to the Land in accordance
with clause 6.2.



3. TERM

The Tenant shall have and hold the Premises, subject to the exceptions and rescrvations
aforesaid, unto the Tenant for the Term from and including the Commencement Date until

and including the Expiry Date.

4. RENT

4.1 Annual Basic Rent

The Tenant shall pay to the Landlord during the Term the following Rent payable at the
Landlord's address specified in the Lease Summary or at such other place as the Landlord
may from time to time designate in writing, in the following installments: the Annual Basic
Rent payable in advance in consecutive monthly installments on the first day of each and
every month in each and every year of the Term, commencing on the Commencement Date
and continuing until and including the first day of the month in which the Expiry Date falls;

42 To Pay

The Tenant shall pay the Annual Basic Rent when due in accordance with the provisions of

this Lease.

4.3 No Abatement

The Tenant covenants and agrees with the Landlord that all of the Rent payable under this
Lease shall be paid by the Tenant without demand, deduction, set-off, or abatement
whatsoever, except as specifically provided in sub clause 9.1(a). The Tenant covenants and
agrees that the Landlord may at its option apply all sums received from or due to the Tenant
against any amounts due and payable hereunder in such manner as the Landlord may see fit,
regardless of any designation or instructions by the Tenant to the contrary.

4.4  Post-Dated Cheques

The Tenant covenants and agrees that the Tenant shall pay the rent by delivery to the
Landlord prior to the commencement of each Operating Year a series of post-dated cheques
each in the amount of the monthly installments of the Annual Basic Rent, or by such other

method of payment as the parties may agree to from time to time

4.5 Adjustment

If the Landlord at its discretion allows the Tenant into possession on a date prior to ‘the
Commencement date, all the provisions of the Lease will apply with the exception of the
payment of rent: there will be no rent payable for the period prior to the Commencement

date.



4.6 Accrual of Annual Basic Rent

The Annual Basic Rent shall accrue from day to day. Where the calculation of any
Additional Rent is not made until the termination or expiry of this Lease, the obligation of
the Tenant to pay such Additional Rent shall survive the termination or expiry of this Lease
and such amounts shall be payable by the Tenant upon demand by the Landlord.

47 Gross Lease

It is the intention of the parties that this Lease shall be a gross lease, but the Annual Basic
Rent provided to be paid to the Landlord hereunder shall yield to the Landlord the entire
such rental during the Term and any renewal thereof without abatement for any cause
whatsoever except as set forth in sub clause 9.1(a). Save as specifically set forth in this
Lease, all costs, expenses, and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever relating to
the Premises whether or not herein referred to and whether or not of a kind now existing or
within the contemplation of the parties, shall be paid by the Landlord.

5.  UTILITIES/SERVICES
5.1  Utilities

The Landlord shall be responsible for the provision, maintenance and cost of all Ultilities,
including baseboard electric heat, but excluding telephone services.

5.2 Services

The Landlord shall be responsible for garbage collection and snow removal relating to the
Premises.

6. USE OF PREMISES
6.1 Use of Premises

The Tenant shall not use the Premises nor allow the Premises to be used for any purpose
other than that specified in the Lease Summary, nor in any manner inconsistent with such
use and occupation, and the Tenant shall not, at any time during the Term or any renewal
thereof, commit or suffer to be committed any waste upon the Premises or the Easement
Area, nor shall the Tenant use, exercise, carry on, or permit, or suffer to be used, exercised,
or carried on, in, or upon the Premises or the Land, or any part thereof, any noxious,
noisome, or offensive art, trade, business, occupation, or calling, or keep, sell, use, handle,
or dispose of any merchandise, goods, or things which are objectionable, or by which the
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Premises or the Land or any part thereof may be damaged or injuriously affected, and no
act, matter, or thing whatsoever shall, at any time during the Term or any renewal thereof,
be done in or upon the Premises or the Land or any part thereof which may result in
annoyance, nuisance, grievance, damage, or disturbance to other tenants or occupiers of the
Building or to the occupiers or owners of any other lands or premises or to the holders of
any registered easement, right of way, or other encumbrance charging the whole or part of
the Land or the Building. The Tenant shall use its best efforts to prevent anything being
done on the Premises or the Land which may result in any premises other than the Premises
being subjected to industrial action or demonstrations. The Tenant shall forthwith take all
action and proceedings reasonably necessary to cause such industrial action and
demonstrations to cease without delay. The Tenant shall not place in the Premises any
heavy machinery or equipment without first obtaining the consent, in writing, of the
Landlord. The Tenant shall immediately advise the Landlord of the presence of, and shall
do all things necessary to remove, any dangerous condition from time to time existing on
the Premises, the Building, or the Land, and arising as a result of the act or omission of the
Tenant or any person for whom the Tenant is, at law, responsible. If the Premises shall be
used for any purpose other than permitted by this clause without prior written consent of the
Landlord, then the Tenant shall be deemed to be in default under this Lease.

6.2 Common Areas and Facilities

(a) The use and occupation of the Premises by the Tenant shall include the non-
exclusive license to use, in common with others entitled thereto, the Common Areas
and Facilities, subject to this Lease and to the exclusive control, management, and
direction of the Landlord. The Landlord hereby grants to the Tenant a non-¢xclusive
license, during the subsisting Term and any renewal thereof, in common with all
others entitled thereto, to pass and repass with or without vehicles over those areas of
the Land as the Landlord may from time to time designate in writing, and to use, for
the parking of motor vehicles, including the parking of two passenger vans of the
Tenant, those parking spaces on the Land as the Landlord may from time to time
designate in writing for the use of the Tenant; provided however that the easement
and license herein granted shall be subject to the charges, reservations, and
exceptions set forth in Article 2 of this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing grant
of easement and license by the Landlord to the Tenant, the Landlord shall have the
right to alter the location and size of the Easement Area and the areas which are the
subject of the said license, provided that reasonable access to the Premises is
provided to the Tenant and the size and convenience of the Easement Area is not

materially adversely affected.

(b) The Common Areas and Facilities shall at all times be subject to the exclusive
control and management of the Landlord and shall be provided or designated by the
Landlord from time to time for the general use by or for the benefit of the Tenant and
its employees, invitees, and licensees in common with the other tenants of the
Landlord and such others as may be designated by the Landlord. The Landlord has
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the right from time to time to establish, modify, and enforce rules and regulations

with respect to the Common Areas and Facilities, including those related to their use,
maintenance, and operation, and the rules and regulations in all respects shall be
observed and performed by the Tenant and the employees, invitees, and licensees of
the Tenant. The Landlord has the right to change the area, level, location, and
arrangement of the Common Areas and Facilities and to enter into, modify, and
terminate easements and agreements pertaining to the use and maintenance thereof,
and to police the Common Areas and Facilities and to close all or any portion thereof
to such an extent as may in the reasonable opinion of the Landlord be legally
sufficient to prevent the accrual or creation of rights to any person or the public
therein, and to do and perform such other acts and things in and to the Common
Areas and Facilities as the Landlord, acting reasonably, considers advisable.

The Tenant covenants that it shall and shall cause its employees, licensees, and
invitees to observe all regulations made by the Landlord from time to time with
respect to parking on those portions of the Land provided for that purpose, and that
the Tenant shall supply automobile license numbers of its employees to the Landlord
upon request. In particular, the Landlord reserves the right to remove any
automobile infringing regulations made by the Landlord with respect to parking from
time to time, such removal to be at the risk and expense of the Tenant.

It is understood and agreed that notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the
Landlord shall have the right at all times and from time to time throughout the Term
and renewal to:

@) change the area, size, or arrangement of the Building and the Land and any
part thereof including the Common Areas and Facilities, agreeing that if a
change to the arrangement of the Building becomes necessary, the Tenant
shall enjoy an area of the Premises of not less than the approximately 2000
square feet agreed upon at the commencement of this Lease, and all of the
originally agreed upon necessities;

(i1) giving full consideration to the nature and mandate of Elizabeth Buckley
School and the Hands On Summer Camp to integrate children suffering
hearing loss, and being aware that most of these hard of hearing children
must use hearing aides, and that hearing aides amplify all sound, construct
other buildings, structures, or improvements on the Land and make
alterations thercof, additions thereto, or re-arrangements thereof, demolish
parts thereof, build additional stories on the Building (and for such purposes
to construct and erect columns and support facilities in the Building), and
construct additional buildings or facilities adjoining or proximate to the
Building, agreeing that should such construction or demolition be likely to
impact the ability of Elizabeth Buckley School of the Hands on Summer
Camp to operate within their mandate, the Landlord shall make every effort
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to have the construction completed outside of the normal hours of operation
of Elizabeth Buckley School (September to June, Monday to Friday, 8:30
a.m. to 2:30 p.m.) and the Hands On Summer Camp (July and August,
Monday to Friday, 9:00a.m. to 4:00p.m.);

(i) relocate or rearrange or make changes or additions to the Common Areas
and Facilities from those existing at the Commencement Date in order to

facilitate expansion or alteration of the Building;

(iv) add additional lands to the Land;

(v) grant new easements and rights of way in favour of other tenants or others;
and
(vi) temporarily obstruct or close off the Common Areas and Facilities or any

parts therefore for the purposes of maintenance, repair, or construction;

provided however that the Landlord shall not unreasonably interfere with the use and
enjoyment of the Premises beyond the extent necessarily incidental to such changes,
additions, and installations, and shall make good any physical damage to the Premises
arising in the course of such changes, additions, and installations. The Landlord agrees to
use its reasonable efforts to complete all construction, alterations, maintenance, and repairs

as expeditiously as possible under the circumstances.

(e) The Tenant shall not have any right to object to nor any right to any claim of
damages, compensation, or other sums whatsoever, nor any right of set-off or
reduction of the Rent as a result of or on account of any exercise of the Landlord's
rights under sub clauses 6.2(b) and 6.2(d). It is further understood and agreed that
the exercise by the Landlord of its rights set forth in sub clauses 6.2(b) and 6.2(d)
shall not be deemed to be constructive or actual eviction of the Tenant, nor a breach
of any covenant of quiet enjoyment or other covenant contained in this Lease.

6.3 Compliance with Laws

The Tenant shall do, observe, and perform all of its obligations and all matters and things
necessary or expedient to be done, observed, or performed by the Tenant by virtue of any
law, statute, bylaw, ordinance, regulation, or lawful requirements of any governmental
authority or any public utility lawfully acting under statutory authority, and all demands and
notices in pursuance thereof whether given to the Tenant or the Landlord and in any manner
or degree affecting the exercise or fulfillment of any right or obligation arising under or as a
result of this Lease and affecting the Premises and the use thereof by the Tenant. If any
such demand or notice is given lawfully requiring the execution of works by reason of
anything done, omitted, or permitted by the Tenant, then:
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if such notice is given to the Tenant, the Tenant shall forthwith deliver the same or a

true copy thereof to the Landlord and the Tenant shall forthwith execute, at its own
expense, to the satisfaction of the Landlord and the person giving such notice, all
such works as the Landlord may approve in writing in order to comply with the
requirements of that notice; and

if such notice is given to the Landlord, the Landlord shall notify the Tenant and
thereupon the Tenant shall forthwith execute, at its own expense, to the satisfaction
of the Landlord and the person giving such notice, all such works as the Landlord
and the person giving such notice may require in order to comply with the
requirements of the said notice.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Landlord shall have the right to execute any such works
and the Tenant shall afford to the Landlord all necessary access to the Premises and other
facilities for such purpose and the Tenant shall, on demand by the Landlord, pay to the
Landlord all costs and expenses incurred by the Landlord in executing and performing any
and all such works.

7.1

(a)

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
Tenant's Insurance

The Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense during the Term and during such other
period of time that the Tenant occupies the Premises, take out and maintain in full
force and effect, the following:

) "all risks" insurance upon all merchandise, stock-in-trade, furniture, fixtures,
equipment, Leasehold Improvements, and other property of every kind and
description located at the Premises, owned by, or made or installed by or on
behalf of the Tenant and any sub-tenant or licensee or for which the Tenant
is responsible or legally liable, in an amount at least equal to the full
insurable value thereof, calculated on a stated amount co-insurance and
replacement cost basis;

(i) automobile liability insurance to a limit of liability of not less than
$2,000,000 in any one accident, covering all licensed motor vehicles owned
by the Tenant and used in connection with its and its licensee's or sub-
tenant's business carried on from the Premises;

(iii) comprehensive bodily injury and property damage liability insurance
applying to the operations of the Tenant and its licensee or sub-tenant carried
on from the Premises and which shall include, without limitation, personal
injury liability, product liability, contractual liability, non-owned automobile
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liability, and protective liability coverage with respect to the occupancy of
the Premises by the Tenant; and such insurance shall be written for an
amount of $3,000,000 per occurrence, Or such higher or lower amount as the
Landlord may from time to time reasonably require or permit;

tenant's all-risks legal liability insurance in an amount not less than the
replacement cost of the Premises;

broad form comprehensive glass replacement insurance;

business interruption insurance in such amounts as will reimburse the
Tenant for direct or indirect loss of earnings attributable to all perils required
to be insured against by the Tenant hereunder; and

any other form or forms of insurance as the Landlord may reasonably require
from time to time in amounts and for perils against which a prudent tenant
acting reasonably would protect itself in similar circumstances.

All policies of insurance referred to in this paragraph shall include the following

provisions:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the policies shall not be affected or invalidated by any act, omission, or
negligence of any person which is not within the knowledge or control of the

insured thereunder;

subject to sub clause 9.1(b), all property damage policies written on behalf
of the Tenant shall contain a waiver of any subrogation rights which the
Tenant's insurers may have against the Landlord and against those for whom
the Landlord is, in law, responsible, whether any insured loss or damage is
caused by the act, omission, or negligence of the Landlord, or by those for
whose acts the Landlord is, in law, responsible, or otherwise;

all policies of liability insurance shall include the Landlord and any persons,
firms, or corporations affiliated with the Landlord and designated by the
Landlord as additional insureds and shall provide that each person, firm, or
corporation insured under such policies shall be insured in the same manner
and to the same extent as if separate policies had been issued to each; and

all policies shall contain an undertaking by the insurers to give the Landlord
not less than 30 days' prior written notice of any cancellation or other
termination thereof, or any change which restricts or reduces the coverage

afforded thereby.
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The Tenant agrees that certificates of insurance or, if required by the Landlord or anl;
of the Landlord's Mortgagees, certified copies of each policy shall be delivered to
the Landlord as soon as practicable after the placing thereof. The Tenant shall, when
required by the Landlord, forthwith provide to the Landlord evidence that all
premiums for all insurance policies have been paid.

For good and valuable consideration, and subject to clause 7.4, the Tenant does
hereby release and relieve the Landlord and those persons for whom the Landlord is,
in law, responsible, from liability and responsibility for, and waives its entire claim
for recovery of any loss or damage whatsoever arising out of or incident to, the
occurrence of any of the perils covered by, or which would be covered by, the
insurance policies which the Tenant is obligated to obtain and maintain in force
under the terms of this Lease.

The Tenant shall not do or permit anything to be done upon the Premises whereby
any policy of insurance against loss or damage to the Premises or against legal
liability for damage to persons or property caused by the ownership, maintenance,
use, or occupancy of the Premises, the Land, or the Building, or by reasons of the
conduct of any business carried on thereon, may be invalidated; and for such
purpose, upon receipt of notice in writing from any insurer of the Premises, the
Land, or the Building requiring the execution of works or a discontinuance of any
operations in order to correct such situation, the Tenant shall comply therewith.

The Tenant agrees that if the Tenant fails to take out or keep in force any insurance
coverage referred to in this clause 7.1, or if any such insurance is not approved by the
Landlord and the Landlord's Mortgagees, and the Tenant does not rectify the
situation within 72 hours after written notice by the Landlord to the Tenant setting
forth the Landlord's objections, then the Landlord shall have the right, without
assuming any obligation in connection therewith, to effect such insurance coverage
and shall have the right to recover all costs and premiums incurred in effecting such
insurance coverage from the Tenant pursuant to clause 7.1.

Indemnify Landlord

The Tenant shall indemnify and save harmless the Landlord from and against any and all
manner of actions or causes of action, damages, costs, loss, or expenses of whatever kind
(including without limitation legal fees on a solicitor and client basis) which the Landlord
may sustain, incur, or be put to by reason of or arising out of any act or omission of the
Tenant or any persons for whom the Tenant is, at law, responsible, or from the use or
occupation of the Premises, the Land, or the Building, in whole or in part and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, from the non-observance or non-performance by the
Tenant or any persons for whom the Tenant is, at law, responsible of any of the obligations
imposed under the provisions of any laws, ordinances, regulations, or requirements of any
federal, provincial, municipal, or other authority, or any of the covenants, agreements,
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terms, conditions, and provisos contained in this Lease to be observed and performed by the
Tenant; and such liability to indemnity and save harmless shall survive any termination of
this Lease and the expiry of the Term or any renewal hereof, anything in this Lease to the

contrary notwithstanding.

7.3

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d

7.4

(a)

Landlord's Insurance

The Landlord shall, during the Term and any renewal thereof, take out and maintain
in full force and effect insurance against all risks of physical loss or damage to the
Building, and such fixtures and improvements as the Landlord shall determine,
including gross rental value insurance, in amounts equal to the full insurable value
thereof calculated on a replacement cost basis, and subject to such deductibles as the
Landlord may reasonably determine. Provided however that the full insurable value
shall not include, and the insurance shall not cover, any property of the Tenant,
whether owned by the Tenant or held by it in any capacity, nor Leasehold
Improvements nor any other property of whatsoever kind and description located at
the Premises whether made or installed by or on behalf of the Tenant. The Landlord
shall, upon 30 days' written notice from the Tenant, advise the Tenant of the amount

of the deductible referred to in this sub clause.

The Landlord shall, upon written request by the Tenant, provide the Tenant with
evidence from time to time that such insurance has been effected.

The Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, take out and carry any other form or
forms of insurance as the Landlord or the Landlord's Mortgagees may consider
advisable or beneficial, including, without limiting the foregoing, comprehensive
liability insurance and boiler and machinery insurance.

Notwithstanding any contribution by the Tenant to any Insurance Costs as provided
for herein, no insurable interest shall be conferred upon the Tenant under policies

carried by the Landlord.

Limitation of Liability of Landlord

The Landlord shall not be liable for any personal injury, death, or property loss or
damage sustained by the Tenant or its employees, agents, sub lessees, licensees, or
those doing business with it on the Premises, in the Building, or on the Land, no
matter how caused, except to the extent caused by the negligence of the Landlord or
those persons for whom the Landlord is, in law, responsible; and the Tenant:

(i) shall indemnify the Landlord against all actions or liabilities arising out of
such personal injury, death, or property damage or loss, except to the extent
caused by the negligence of the Landlord or those persons for whom the

Landlord is, in law, responsible; and
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8.1

(a)
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(i1) hereby releases the Landlord and its officers, agents, and employees from all
claims for damages or other expenses arising out of such personal injury,
death, or property loss or damage, except to the extent caused by the
negligence of the Landlord or those persons for whom the Landlord is, in
law, responsible.

Without limiting the foregoing, the Landlord shall not be liable for any personal
injury, death, or property loss or damage sustained by the Tenant or its employees,
agents, sub lessees, licensees, or invitees on the Premises, in the Building, or on the
Land caused by theft or any damage caused or anything done or omitted to be done
by any other tenant or occupant of the Land except to the extent caused by the
negligence of the Landlord or by those persons for whom the Landlord is, in law,
responsible; and the Tenant:

() shall indemnify the Landlord against all actions or liabilities arising out of
such personal injury, death, or property damage or loss except to the extent
caused by the negligence of the Landlord or those persons for whom the
Landlord is, in law, responsible; and

(ii) hereby releases the Landlord and its officers, agents, and employees from all
claims for damages or other expenses arising out of such personal injury,
death, or property loss or damage, except to the extent caused by the
negligence of the Landlord or those persons for whom the Landlord is, in
law, responsible.

MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, AND ALTERATIONS
Repair on Notice

The Tenant shall permit the Landlord and its duly authorized agents or nominees,
with or without workers and others, at all reasonable times to enter upon the
Premises for the purpose of examining the state of repair, condition, and use thereof,
and to permit such entry after the Landlord shall have given 24 hours' notice in
writing to the Tenant of such intended entry and examination, or without notice in
the event of an emergency or a perceived emergency, and in every case the Tenant
shall afford the Landlord all aid and facilities in such entry and examination, and
upon notice in writing of defect or want of repair being given by the Landlord to the
Tenant, to cause the same to be repaired, as required by clause 8.1, within 30 days
from the date of the giving of such notice by the Landlord. If the Tenant shall at any
time default in the performance or observance of any of the covenants in this Lease
for or relating to the repair, maintenance, cleaning, renewal, or decoration of the
Premises or any part thereof and such default shall continue for 30 days after notice
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in writing from the Landlord of default in respect of repair, maintenance, cleaning,
renewal, or decoration of the premises, then the Tenant shall permit the Landlord and
its duly authorized agents and nominees, with or without workers and others, and
without prejudice to the Landlord's right of-re-entry,-to enter into and upon the
Premises and repair, decorate, clean, renew, and maintain the same at the expense of
the Tenant; and the Tenant shall afford the Landlord all aid and facilities in doing or
causing the same to be done and shall repay to the Landlord on demand all costs and
expenses in respect of such repairs, maintenance, cleaning, renewal, and decoration

as aforesaid.

8.2 Business and Trade Fixtures

The Tenant to install at its cost the usual fixtures and appliances required for a school,
kindergarten and summer (day) camp base in the usual manner in the Premises, provided
such installation does not damage the Premises or the Building and provided further that, if
requested by the Landlord, the Tenant shall have submitted to the Landlord plans and
specifications for such business and trade fixtures and obtained the prior written consent of
the Landlord thereto, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Tenant shall
not mortgage, charge, encumber, or grant a security interest in its business and trade fixtures
installed in or on the Premises without the prior written consent of the Landlord, which
consent may not be unreasonably withheld. All business and trade fixtures owned or
installed by the Tenant in or on the Premises shall remain the property of the Tenant and
shall be removed by the Tenant at the expiration of the Term or any renewal thereof or at
the sooner termination thereof, provided that the Tenant at its expense shall repair any
damage to the Premises, the Land, or the Building caused by such removal. Such removal
by the Tenant shall be permitted provided that the Tenant is not in default under any
covenant or agreement contained herein at the time of such removal; and if in default, the
Landlord shall have a lien on the Tenant's business and trade fixtures as security against
loss or damage resulting from any such default by the Tenant, and the Tenant's business and
trade fixtures shall not be removed by the Tenant until such default is cured, unless
otherwise directed by the Landlord. The Landlord may elect to require the Tenant to
remove all or any part of the business and trade fixtures owned or installed by or on behalf
of the Tenant at the expiration or termination of the Term or any renewal thereof, in which
event such removal shall be done at the Tenant's expense and the Tenant shall, at its
expense, repair any damage to the Premises, the Building, and the Land caused by such
removal. If the Tenant does not remove its business and trade fixtures forthwith after
written demand by the Landlord, such property shall, if the Landlord elects, be deemed to
become the Landlord's property or the Landlord may remove the same at the expense of the
Tenant and the cost of such removal shall be paid by the Tenant forthwith to the Landlord
on written demand, and the Landlord shall not be responsible for any loss or damage to such
property as a result of such removal.
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8.3  Alterations and Additions

The Tenant shall not remove, alter, or change the position or style of, or add to, the
Premises or any part thereof, or make any excavations on the Land, without in any and
every such case having first submitted plans and specifications thereof to the Landlord and
having obtained the prior written consent of the Landlord thereto, and, unless otherwise
provided by such consent, all such alterations, additions, erections, or excavations shall be
done either by or under the direction of the Landlord, as the Landlord may determine, but at
the cost of the Tenant. All work shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner by
contractors or trades people approved in writing by the Landlord. The Tenant shall pay to
and reimburse the Landlord forthwith on demand for all costs and expenses incurred by the
Landlord in the review and approval of any plans and specifications by the Landlord's
architects and engineers. The Tenant shall obtain and pay for all required building and
occupancy permits in respect of its work as aforesaid. The Tenant shall, at its own cost and
expense, take out or cause to be taken out any additional insurance coverage reasonably
required by the Landlord to protect the respective interests of the Landlord and the Tenant
during all periods when any such work is being performed.

8.4  Leasehold Improvements

Any and all Leasehold Improvements, but not Tenant's business and trade fixtures in or
upon the Premises, whether placed there by the Tenant or the Landlord or a previous
occupant of the Premises, shall immediately upon such placement become, and shall
thereafter remain, the property of the Landlord without compensation therefore to the
Tenant. Notwithstanding anything herein contained, the Landlord shall be under no
obligation to repair, maintain, replace, or insure the Leasehold Improvements. The
Landlord may eclect that any or all Leasehold Improvements made or installed by or
on behalf of the Tenant under this Lease, or under the provisions of any previous lease to
the Tenant, be removed at the expiry or earlier termination of the Term or any renewal
thereof, and it shall be the Tenant's obligation to restore the Premises to the condition in
which they were prior to the installation of the Leasehold Improvements. Such removal and
restoration shall be at the sole expense of the Tenant. The Tenant shall not
mortgage,  charge, encumber, or grant any security interest in any Leaschold
Improvements made or installed by or on behalf of the Tenant hereunder. The Landlord
agrees to provide the tenant with a List of all previously completed Leasehold
Improvements which are not insured by the Landlord.

8.5 Landlord's Repairs

Subject to clauses 4.1, 4.2, 8.1, and Atrticle 9, the Landlord shall repair and maintain the
Land and the Building, including without limitation the Common Areas and Facilities.
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DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION, OR EXPROPRIATION OF THE PREMISES

Damage and Destruction

If the Premises are damaged by fire or other casualty which renders all of the
Premises or a substantial area of the Premises unusable by the Tenant and materially
adversely- affects the business carried on by the Tenant on the Premises, then the
Annual Basic Rent shall from and after the date of the damage abate in the same
proportion as such unusable arca of the Premises bears to the total Area of the
Premises, and such abatement shall continue until such unusable area of the
Premises is capable of use by the Tenant or until the lease is terminated, whichever
shall first occur. The Landlord agrees that Elizabeth Buckley School staff and the
Hands On Summer Camp Society board of directors will be involved in the
determining of whether the Premises has been rendered unsafe or unusable for the
operation of the Elizabeth Buckley School or the Hands on Summer Camp. In the
event that such a determination is made, the Annual Basic Rent shall, from and after
the date of the damage, abate until the Tenant agrees that the Premises are capable of
use by the Tenant, or until the Lease is terminated, whichever shall first occur.

Except as provided in sub clause 9.1(c), if the Premises are damaged by fire or other

casualty not caused by the negligence of the Tenant or those for whom it is
responsible in law, and the damage is covered by insurance held by the Landlord
under this Lease, then the damage to the Premises shall be repaired by the Landlord
at its expense provided that the Tenant shall, to the limits of insurance it ought to
have received under the terms of this Lease, be responsible for any costs in excess of
insurance proceeds received. The Tenant shall, at its expense, repair all Leasehold
Improvements and any installations, alterations, additions, partitions, improvements,
and fixtures made by or on behalf of the Tenant and all damage caused by its
negligence or the negligence of those for whom it is responsible in law. At the
option of the Landlord, such repairs shall be performed by the Landlord at the
expense of the Tenant if the Landlord considers that this would be more efficient and
cost-effective. All repairs which the Landlord is required to make hereunder shall be
made with due diligence, provided that the Landlord shall not be liable to the Tenant
for any loss or damage suffered by the Tenant as a result of any delay which may
arise by reason of adjustment of insurance on the part of the Landlord or on account
of the circumstances described in clause 16.7.

If, in the Landlord's opinion, the Building is damaged by fire or other casualty to the

extent that it cannot reasonably be repaired or rebuilt within 180 days after the
occurrence of such damage, and if the Landlord shall consequently decide not to
restore the same, then the Landlord shall, within 15 working days after the
happening of such fire or other casualty, give to the Tenant a notice in writing of
such decision and thereupon the Term and any renewal of this Lease shall expire
effective the 15th business day following the occurrence of the damage, and the
Tenant shall vacate the Premises and the Easement Area and surrender the Premises
and the Easement Area to the Landlord, and all rights of the Tenant hereunder shall
cease and determine within two business days following the effective date of
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termination. If the Building is damaged as aforesaid and the Landlord does not give
notice as aforesaid, then the Landlord shall diligently proceed to repair or rebuild the
Building in accordance with sub clause 9.1(b). If such repair or rebuilding is not
completed and available for occupation by the Tenant within 240 days from the
time of the fire or other casualty causing the damage, the Tenant may at its option,
to be exercised within 10 days of the termination of the said period of 240 days
(or the termination of such later period as extended by clause 16.7) by notice in
writing, terminate this Lease and all of the rights of the Tenant hereunder, and the
Tenant shall then have no further liability for Rent in respect of any period after the
date of termination.

Expropriation

If the whole of the Premises shall be acquired or condemned by an authority having the
power for such acquisition or condemnation then the Term and any renewal thereof shall
cease from the date of entry by such authority. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the
Landlord or the Tenant or both from recovering damages from such authority for the value
of their respective interests or for such other damages and expenses allowed by law.

10.

(a)

(b)

ASSIGNMENT and SUBLETTING

In the event that the Tenant desires to make, grant, execute, enter into, consent to, or
permit any Transfer then the Tenant shall give prior written notice to the Landlord of
such desire, specifying therein the proposed Transferee and providing to the
Landlord such information on the nature of the business of the proposed Transferee,
together with its financial responsibility and standing, as the Landlord may
reasonably require, together with the terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer.
The Tenant shall also deliver to the Landlord a copy of the Transfer intended to be
executed by the Tenant and the Transferee, together with the Landlord's
administration fee required hereunder. The Landlord shall, within 10 business days
thereafter, notify the Tenant in writing that:

(i) it consents to such Transfer, or

(ii) that it does not consent to such Transfer, in which event the Landlord must
advise the Tenant of its reason for not consenting, or

(iii)  that it has elected to terminate the Lease as provided in sub clause 10.1(£).

Provided always and notwithstanding sub clause 10.1(a), the Landlord's consent to a
Transfer does not constitute a waiver of the necessity for the Tenant to obtain the
prior written consent of the Landlord to any subsequent Transfer, and no Transfer
shall in any manner release the Tenant from its obligations for the payment of the
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Rent and the observance and performance of the covenants, terms, and conditions
herein provided during the Term and any renewal of the Term.

Upon the initial request for & Transfer together with -receipt from the Tenant of the
administration fee and undertaking required in sub clause 10.1(d), and provided that
the Landlord does not withhold its consent to such Transfer, the Landlord shall
provide to the Tenant its standard-form written agreement pertaining to Transfers.
The Tenant shall require each Transferee, at the time of any Transfer, to execute and
deliver the Landlord's standard-form written agreement between the Tenant, the
Landlord, and the Transferee wherein the Transferee agrees to observe and perform
all of the covenants, agreements, provisos, terms, and conditions of this Lease, and
wherein the Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it shall continue to be liable under
this Lease during the Term and any renewal of the Term. If either the Tenant or the
Transferee fails to execute and deliver the said standard-form written agreement then
the Landlord shall have the right to refuse to grant its consent to such Transfer, or
where such consent is not required the Transfer shall not be effective until the said
standard-form written agreement is executed and delivered by the Tenant and the
Transferee. Without in any way restricting the generality of the Landlord's right to
refuse consent to any Transfer, the Landlord shall have the right to refuse to consent

to any Transfer if the Lease is not in good standing.

The Tenant shall, together with its initial request to the Landlord for consent to any
Transfer, pay to the Landlord an administration fee of a minimum of $200 or such
other greater fee as the Landlord may reasonably charge from time to time, and the
Tenant shall also undertake to reimburse to the Landlord any solicitors' fees and any
other costs, charges, and expenses which may be incurred by the Landlord in
connection with the Tenant's request for consent to any Transfer.

If the Tenant is a corporation or society or if the Transferee is a corporation or
society, and at any time during the Term or any renewal thereof any or all of the
corporate shares or voting rights of shareholders of the Tenant or the Transferee shall
be transferred by sale, assignment, bequest, inheritance, trust, operation of law, or
other disposition, or treasury shares be issued, so as to result in the control of the
Tenant or the Transferee having changed from one person or group of persons to
another person or group of persons without the prior written consent of the Landlord,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, then and so often as such a
change of control shall occur the Landlord shall have the right to terminate this
Lease at any time after such change of control by giving the Tenant 60 days' prior
written notice of such termination. The Tenant shall, upon request by the Landlord,
make available to the Landlord from time to time for inspection and copying all
books and records of the Tenant which alone or with other data show the
applicability or otherwise of this sub clause. This sub clause shall not be applicable
to any transfer of shares which are listed on a security exchange regulated by

governmental authority.
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® Provided further that after receiving any request for a Transfer the Landlord shall
have the right, at its option and despite any provision of this Lease or any statutory
provision or other law to the contrary, to terminate this Lease by giving, within 10
days after receiving the required information, notice that the Lease shall be
terminated effective as of the commencement date of the proposed Transfer, or
earlier if mutually agreed to by the Landlord and the Tenant. In the event of such
termination the rent and other payments required to be made by the Tenant
hereunder shall be adjusted to the date of termination.

11. YEARLY OPTION FOR EARLY TERMINATION

(a) The Landlord may at its option give the Tenant 180 days written notice to vacate
the Premises. The notice can be given without cause, and notwithstanding that the
Lease is in good standing at the time of the notice. The obligation of the Tenant to
observe all other terms of the Lease remains in force.

(b) The Tenant may give the Landlord 180 days written notice of intention to vacate
the Premises, provided that the Lease is in good standing at the time the notice is
given and remains in good standing at the end of the notice period.

12.  DEFAULT
12.1 Payments by Landlord Regarded as Rent

If the Tenant shall fail to observe or perform any of the covenants or obligations of the
Tenant under or in respect of this Lease, the Landlord may from time to time at its
discretion perform or cause to be performed any of such covenants or obligations or any
part thereof, and for such purpose may do such things as may be requisite, and may enter
upon the Premises to do such things; and all costs and expenses incurred and expenditures
made by or on behalf of the Landlord shall be forthwith paid by the Tenant to the Landlord.
If the Tenant fails to pay the same, the Landlord may add the same to the Rent and recover
the same by all remedies available to the Landlord for the recovery of Rent in arrears.
Nothing in this clause 12.1 shall require the Landlord to directly or indirectly commence or
complete such performance of the Tenant's covenants or obligations. If the Landlord shall
suffer or incur any damage, loss, cost, or expense whatsoever for which the Tenant is in any
way liable hereunder, by reason of any failure of the Tenant to observe or comply with any
of the covenants or agreements of the Tenant in this Lease, then in every such case the
amount of any such damage, loss, cost, or expense shall be due and payable by the Tenant to
the Landlord on demand by the Landlord and the Landlord shall have the right at its option
to add the cost or amount of any such damage, loss, cost, or expense to the Rent hereby
reserved, and any such amount shall thereupon immediately be due and payable as Rent and
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recoverable by the Landlord by all remedies available to the Landlord for the recovery of
Rent in arrears.

12.2 Re-Entry on Default

The Tenant further covenants with the Landlord that in the event of the breach, non-
observance, or non-performance of any covenant, agreement, stipulation, proviso, condition,
rule, or regulation herein contained on the part of the Tenant to be kept, performed, or
observed hereunder, and any such breach, non-observance, or non-performance shall
continue for seven days after written notice thereof to the Tenant by the Landlord, or,
notwithstanding the foregoing, if any payments of the Rent or any part thereof, whether the
same are demanded or not, are not paid when they become due, or in case the Term shall be
taken in execution or attachment for any cause whatsoever, then and in any such case the
Landlord, in addition to any other remedy now or hereafter provided, may re-enter and take
possession immediately of the Premises or any part thereof in the name of the whole by
reasonable persons and property therefrom, and may use such reasonable force and
assistance in making such removal as the Landlord may deem advisable, at a time outside of
the normal hours of operation of Elizabeth Buckley School (September to June, Monday to
Friday, 8:30 a.m. to 2:30 p.m.) and the Hands On Summer Camp (July to August, Monday
to Friday, 9:00a.m. to 4:00p.m.), when no children are present on the Premises, to recover
at once full and exclusive possession of the Premises and the Easement Area; and such re-
entry shall not operate as a waiver or satisfaction in whole or in part of any right, claim, or
demand arising out of or connected with any breach, non-observance, or non-performance
of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Tenant to be kept, observed, or performed.

12.3 Bankruptcy or Insolvency of Tenant

If during the Term or any renewal thereof any of the goods and chattels of the Tenant shall
be seized or taken in attachment by any creditor of the Tenant, or if a writ of execution,
sequestration, or extent shall issue against the goods and chattels of the Tenant, or if any
petition or other application is presented to any court of competent jurisdiction for the
dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up of the Tenant or for the appointment of a receiver or
receiver and manager, or if the Tenant shall become bankrupt or insolvent or take the
benefit of any statute now or hereafter in force for bankrupt or insolvent debtors, or if the
Premises shall be used for any purpose other than permitted by clause 6.1 without the prior
written consent of the Landlord, or if the Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of
creditors or shall make any sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of its goods
and chattels (except incidental to its amalgamation with any other company), then and in
every case the Tenant shall be, and be deemed to be, in default under this Lease; the then-
current and Annual Basic Rent and Additional Rent and any additional money owing
hereunder shall immediately become due and payable; the Landlord may re-enter and take
possession of the Premises or any part thereof in the name of the whole, and have again,
repossess, and enjoy the Premises and the Easement Area in its former estate, anything
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herein to the contrary notwithstanding, and the Term and any renewal thereof shall, at the
option of the Landlord, forthwith become forfeited and determined.

12.4 Termination

The Tenant further covenants and agrees that upon the Landlord becoming entitled tore-
enter upon the Premises under any of the provisions of this Lease, the Landlord, in addition
to all other rights and remedies, shall have the right to forthwith terminate this Lease and the
Term or any renewal thereof by giving notice in writing addressed to the Tenant of its
intention so to do, and any other payments for which the Tenant is liable under this Lease up
to the date of the Landlord's repossession of the Premises shall be paid and the Tenant shall
forthwith deliver up possession of the Premises to the Landlord, and the Landlord may re-
enter and take possession of the Premises without limitation to its right to claim damages
arising from the Tenant's breach.

12.5 Distress

At any time that the Landlord is entitled to levy distress against the goods and chattels of the
Tenant, it may use such reasonable force as it may deem necessary for the purpose of
gaining admission to the Premises without being liable for any action in respect thereof or
for any loss or damage occasioned thereby, and the Tenant hercby expressly releases the
Landlord from all actions, proceedings, claims, or demands whatsoever for or on account of
or in respect of any such forcible entry or any loss or damage sustained by the Tenant in
connection therewith. The Tenant covenants and agrees to indemnify and save harmless
the Landlord from and against any and all manner of actions or causes of action, damages,
costs, loss, or expenses of whatever kind which the Landlord may sustain, incur, or be put to
by reason of or arising out of the distress, seizure, or the levy of distress against any goods
or chattels on or in the Premises, whether owned by the Tenant or any other person, and
such liability to indemnify and save harmless shall survive any termination of this Lease and
the expiry of the Term or any renewal thereof, anything in this Lease to the contrary
notwithstanding.

12.6 Landlord's Expenses Enforcing Lease

If it is necessary for the Landlord to retain the services of any person for the purpose of
assisting the Landlord in enforcing any of its rights under this Lease or otherwise available
at law, the Landlord, if found to be in the right, shall be entitled to collect from the Tenant
the cost of all such services including, but not limited to, all charges by any bailiff effecting
a distress and all legal fees and disbursements incurred in enforcing the Landlord's rights
hereunder and in connection with all necessary court proceedings at trial or on appeal on a
solicitor and own client basis, as if the same were Rent reserved and in arrears hereunder. If
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any court of competent jurisdiction finds in favour of the Tenant, the Tenant shall be
entitled to collect from the Landlord all legal fees and disbursement and all fees connected
with the necessary court proceedings at trial or appeal on a solicitor and own client basis,
incurred in defending their rights as tenants.

12.7 Remedies Cumulative

No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Landlord under this Lease, by statute or
otherwise, shall be considered exclusive of any other remedy, but the same shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy available to the Landlord and all
such remedies and powers of the Landlord may be exercised concurrently and from time to

time and as often as the Landlord deems expedient.

13. SUBORDINATION, ATTORNMENT, AND STATUS CERTIFICATE

13.1 Provide Financial Information

Whenever any of the Landlord's Mortgagees, in connection with any financing of the Land
or the Building or any part thercof, shall require information relating to the financial
position of the Tenant, then the Tenant, within 30 days after receipt by it of a notice in
writing from the Landlord requesting such information, shall furnish directly to such
Landlord's Mortgagee copies of the financial statements of profit and loss and surplus or
deficit, in respect of each of the three years immediately preceding the year in which such
notice is given. All such information shall be used by such Landlord's Mortgagees in
connection with such financing only, and shall be supplied to such Landlord's Mortgagees
on the condition that the information be treated on a confidential basis.

13.2 Subordination

This Lease is and shall be subject, subordinate, and postponed to all Mortgages to the extent
that without execution of any document other than this Lease, the Mortgages shall have
priority over this Lease notwithstanding the respective dates of execution, delivery, or
registration thereof. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Tenant agrees to
promptly execute any document in confirmation of such subordination and postponement of
this Lease to any of the Mortgages, provided however that such subordination or
postponement shall not be effective with respect to a specific Mortgage unless and until the
Landlord's Mortgagee holding such Mortgage shall confirm in writing to the Tenant that the
Tenant shall have the right, if not in default under this Lease, to remain in possession ofthe
Premises in accordance with the terms of this Lease in the event that such Landlord's

Mortgagee obtains title to the Premises by way of foreclosure or otherwise.
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13.3 Attornment

Whenever required by any of the Landlord's Mortgagees under any of the Mortgages, or in
the event of an exercise by any of the Landlord's Mortgagees of the power of sale in any of
the Mortgages; the Tenant shall attorn to and become, in each-case, a tenant of such
Landlord's Mortgagees or any purchaser from such Landlord's Mortgagee for the then-
unexpired residue of the Term upon all of the terms and conditions hereof.

13.4 Estoppel Certificate

The Tenant shall at any time and from time to time upon 10 days' prior notice from the
Landlord execute and deliver to the Landlord, or the Landlord's Mortgagees, or a
prospective purchaser of the whole or any portion of the Landlord's interest in the Land or
the Building, a statement in writing confirming the terms of this Lease, certifying that this
Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if modified, stating the modifications
and that the same is in full force and effect as modified), and certifying the amount of the
Rent then being paid hereunder, the dates to which the Rent and other charges hereunder
have been paid, that the Landlord has complied with all the terms of this Lease, that the
Premises are acceptable to the Tenant, that the Tenant shall not amend, modify, or surrender
this Lease or make any prepayment of the Rent other than the Rent for the current month
without the prior written consent of the Landlord's Mortgagees or prospective purchaser,
that there are no outstanding set-offs or equities disclosed or undisclosed as between the
Landlord and the Tenant, that no money other than a maximum of one month's Rent in
accordance with the provisions of the Lease has been prepaid by the Tenant to the Landlord,
that the Tenant is aware of the assignment by the Landlord to the Landlord's Mortgagees of
all Rents under this Lease, and any other matters pertaining to this Lease in respect of which
the L.andlord may desire certification.

14. QUIET ENJOYMENT

The Landlord covenants with the Tenant for quiet enjoyment, subject to the charges,
exceptions and reservations in Article 2 and subject to any rights of entry by the Landlord as
provided in this Lease.

15. MISCELLANEOUS COVENANTS
15.1 Signs

The Tenant shall not, at any time, affix or exhibit or permit to be affixed or exhibited upon
any part of the Premises or the Easement Area except within the Premises, any Sign, unless
such Sign shall have been first approved in writing by the Landlord and such Sign complies
at all times with the requirements of any lawful authority having jurisdiction over the same.
If any Sign no longer complies with the terms of the consent given by the Landlord or the
requirements of any lawful authority having jurisdiction over the same, then the Landlord,
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any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein
contained. The subsequent acceptance of the Rent or any portion hereunder by the
Landlord shall not be deemed to be a waiver of a preceding breach by the Tenant of
any term, covenant, or condition of this Lease.

(b)  The acceptance of any of the Rent from, or the performance of any obligation
hereunder by, a person other than the Tenant shall not be construed as an admission
by the Landlord of any rights, title, or interest of such person as a Transferee or
otherwise in the place and stead of the Tenant.

(©) Notwithstanding clause 12.3, the acceptance by the Landlord of a part payment of
any money required to be paid hereunder shall not constitute waiver or release of the

right of the Landlord to payment in full of such money.

16.4 Notices

All notices, demands, and requests which may be or are required to be given pursuant to this
Lease shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given if delivered personally to the party
or an officer of the party for whom it is intended, or faxed with a confirmation copy mailed,
or mailed prepaid and registered to the respective addresses specified in the Lease Summary
or such other addresses as the parties may from time to time advise by notice in writing.
The Tenant shall require each Transferee to supply its respective mailing address to the
Landlord. The date of receipt of any such notice, demand, or request shall be deemed to be
the date of delivery of such notice, demand, or request if delivered or if faxed as aforesaid it
shall be deemed to be received on the next day following the date of transmission
(excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and statutory holidays in British Columbia), or if mailed as
aforesaid it shall be deemed to be received on the third day next following the date of such
mailing (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and statutory holidays in British Columbia), unless
there is between the date of mailing and actual receipt a mail strike or other labour dispute
which adversely affects mail service in British Columbia, in which case the party giving the
notice, demand, or request shall deliver such notice, demand, or request by an alternative

method.

16.5 Peaceful Surrender

The Tenant shall, at the expiration or sooner determination of the Term, forthwith
peacefully surrender and yield up unto the Landlord the Premises and its appurtenances,
together with all fixtures or improvements which at any time during the Term shall be made
therein or thereon, in the state of repair required to be maintained by the Tenant hereunder,
without notice from the Landlord; and shall deliver to the Landlord all keys to the Premises

which the Tenant has in its possession.
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16.6 Holding Over

If the Tenant shall hold over with the Landlord's written consent after the expiration of the
Term or any renewal thereof, and the Landlord shall accept the new Rent or any portion
thereof, the new tenancy thereby created shall be deemed to be a monthly tenancy and not a
yearly tenancy and shall be subject to the covenants and conditions herein contained insofar
as the same are applicable to a tenancy from month to month, except that if the Tenant
remains in possession without the Landlord's written consent, the monthly installments of
Annual Basic Rent shall be two times the monthly installments of Annual Basic Rent
payable for the last month of the later of the Term or any renewal thereof, pro-rated on a
daily basis for each day that the Tenant remains in possession, and in addition the Tenant
shall be liable for all costs, expenses, losses, and damages resulting or arising from the
failure of the Tenant to deliver up possession of the Premises to the Landlord.

16.7 Inability to Perform

Whenever and to the extent that the Landlord shall be unable to fulfill, or shall be delayed
or restricted in the fulfillment of any obligation hereunder by reason of being unable to
obtain the material, goods, equipment, service, utility, or labour required to enable it to
fulfill any such obligation, or by reason of any statute, law, or order-in-council or any
regulation or order passed or made pursuant thereto, or by reason of the order or direction of
any administrator, controller, or board, or any governmental department or officer or other
authority, or by act of God, or by reason of not being able to obtain any permission or
authority required thereby, or by reason of strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances,
explosion, breakage or accident to machinery, or by reason of any other cause beyond its
control whether of the foregoing character or not, the Landlord shall be entitled to extend
the time for fulfillment of such obligation by a time equal to the duration of such delay or
restriction, and the Tenant shall not be entitled to compensation for any inconvenience,
nuisance, discomfort, or damage thereby occasioned and, notwithstanding clause
9.1(a),shall not be entitled to cancel or terminate this Lease.

16.8 Interest

[nterest on any money due to the Landlord under this Lease shall be paid by the Tenant and
shall accrue on a daily basis at the Prime Rate plus 3% per annum, such rate of interest to be
calculated and compounded monthly, not in advance, from the respective date upon which
any such money becomes due to the Landlord.

16.9 Governing Law

This Lease shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the province
of British Columbia.
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16.10 Number and Gender

Where required the singular number shall be deemed to include the plural and the neuter
gender the masculine or feminine.

16.11 Covenants

The Landlord and the Tenant agree that all of the provisions of this Lease are to be
construed as covenants and agreements as though the words imparting such covenants and
agreements were used in each separate provision thereof  Should any provision or
provisions of this Lease be illegal or not enforceable, it or they shall be considered separate
and severable from this Lease and its remaining provisions shall remain in force and be
binding upon the parties as though the said provision or provisions had never been included.

16.12 Time of the Essence

Time shall be of the essence of this Lease, save as herein otherwise specified.

16.13 Headings

Any captions, headings, and marginal notes throughout this Lease are for convenience and
reference only and the words and phrases contained therein shall in no way be held or
deemed to define, limit, describe, explain, modify, amplify, or add to the interpretation,
construction, or meaning of any provision of or the scope or intent of this Lease nor in any

way affect this Lease.

16.14 Enurement

This Lease shall extend to, be binding upon, and enure to the benefit of the Landlord and the
Tenant and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and permitted

assigns.

16.15 Continuation of Obligations

This Lease and the obligations of the Tenant hereunder shall continue in full force and
effect notwithstanding any change in the person or persons comprising the Landlord.

16.16 Landlord's Limit of Liability

The term "Landlord" as used in this Lease so far as covenants or obligations on the part of
the Landlord are concerned shall be limited to mean the Landlord as described in the Lease
Summary, while it retains its interest in the Premises, but upon a sale, transfer, or other
disposition of that interest, the Landlord shall be automatically and immediately relieved
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from all liability arising out of the requirement for performance of any obligations on the

part of the Landlord herein contained, it being understood and agreed hereby that the
obligations contained in this Lease on the part of the Landlord shall be binding upon the
Landlord,- its successors, -and assigns; only during and-in respect of the-respective successive
periods of its interest in the Premises. The Tenant agrees to attorn to a purchaser,
transferee, or person acquiring the interest of the Landlord in the Premises, such attornment
to be effective and self-operative without the necessity of the execution of any further
instrument on the part of the Landlord, the Tenant, or any other person.

16.17 Consents

Wherever and whenever the approval or consent of the Landlord is required to be obtained,
such approval or consent may be given by such officers, agents, committee, person, or
persons as may from time to time be nominated or appointed in writing by the Landlord for
such purpose, and any such power of nomination or appointment may be delegated by the
Landlord. Subject to the terms of this Lease, such nominees, appointees, or delegates shall
have the right to withhold approval of or consent to, and may reject, any matter or thing
submitted for approval or consent, and every such approval or consent given shall be in
writing and may contain such conditions and stipulations as the Landlord may deem fit.

16.18 Amendments

This Lease shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and shall not be modified, amended, or waived except by an
instrument in writing duly executed and delivered by the parties or by their successors and
permitted assigns.

16.19 Deposits: Ni/

16.20 Option to Renew: Ni/

16.21 Schedules

The Schedules attached hereto are hereby incorporated and form part of this Lease.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have duly executed and delivered this Lease as of the
day and year first above written.

Per:

THE HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY

s )
Per: / W, }"(;_ggn Wi lse M

Authorize Signatory

Per: /; MM’

Auffiorized Signatory




The (ridge Q\’ ey 6,
i

May 25, 2018

Mayor and Council
City of Victoria

1 Centennial Square
Victoria, BC V8W 1P6

Dear Madam Mayor and Members of Council:
Re: 1190 Kings Road, Folio #08582002

The property in question, Folio #08582002, is covered in great part under a grant of permissive
property tax exemption to The Cridge Centre for the Family. A portion of one building (three
rooms equaling 2,000 square feet in The Cridge Centre for the Family Childcare Centre) is
leased to the Hands on Summer Camp Society, operating the Elizabeth Buckley School for
children of all abilities.

As you will recall from the last 3 years, we have asked council that the portion of the building
occupied by Elizabeth Buckley School (EBS) currently covered by the permissive tax exemption
granted to The Cridge Centre, be included for tax exemption.

We are again writing jointly as owner (The Cridge Centre {or the Family) and Lessec (EBS) to
request an exemption on this 2,000 sq. foot space.

The Cridge Centre for the Family is a 145 year old non-profit charity, partnering with EBS, also
a registered charity. We both serve families with children with special needs, and in this
partnership often the same families.

Clearly we are two not-for-profit agencies serving Victoria families and we seek the goodwill of
the City in granting this permissive property tax exemption for the school in order that neither
agency will be required to pass along costs to vulnerable families.

[t is an inequity that should Elizabeth Buckley School have been in a position to own their own
property, they would qualify for an exemption. However, renting from another non-profit




charity results in a loss of permissive tax exemption on that space, negatively impacting both
organizations.

Council members indicated 3 years ago a recognition of the inequity and committed to reviewing
the issue in the new term. Council has the ability and authority to permissively exempt the
Elizabeth Buckley School and given these two very special agencies working together to further
the success of families and given the special circumstances we present here, we respectfully
request the support and assistance of council in granting this request for exemption from property

taxation.

CE

The Cridge Centre for the Family

1307 Hillside Avenue, Victoria BC V8T 0A2
Telephone (250) 384-8058

Fax (250) 384-5267

Website www.cridge.org

ooy, f l%
Melissa Phillips
President
Elizabeth Buckley School
Hands on Summer Camp Society
1307 Hillside Avenue, Victoria BC V8T 0A2
Telephone (250) 995-6425
Fax (250) 995-6428
Website www.elizabethbuckleyschool.com
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216-911 Yates Street

OBARA & COMPANY Victoria, BC V8V 4)?3
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS Tel: 250-388-7879
Fax: 250-381-0808

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

To the Directors of Hands On Summer Camp Society

We have reviewed the statement of financial position of Hands On Summer Camp Society as at June 30,
2017 and the statements of revenues and expenditures, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended. Our review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review
engagements and, accordingly, consisted primarily of inquiry, analytical procedures and discussion related
to information supplied to us by the Society.

A review does not constitute an audit and, consequently, we do not express an audit opinion on these
financial statements.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial
statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations.

" Obawe < C.wscwc/
Victoria, B.C. '

October 12, 2017 Chartered Professional Accountants




HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)
2017 2016
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 182,481 $ 169,761
Cash - Camp 26,059 44,904
Term deposits 94,355 93,559
Accounts receivable - 6,434
Goods and services tax recoverable 939 2,528
Prepaid expenses 3,397 4,125
307,231 321,311
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 5) 32,406 50,407
$ 339,637 § 371,718
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT
Accounts payable $ 17,186  $ 29,052
Wages payable and employee benefits payable 44,083 49,400
Deferred revenue (Note 6) 56,521 75,058
117,790 153,510
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL
ASSETS (Note 7) 273 1,200
118,063 154,710
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted Operating Fund 86,467 64,827
Invested in Capital Assets 32,133 49,207
Contingency Fund ' 102,974 102,974
221,574 217,008

$ 339,637 & 371,718

APPROVED BY THE DIRECTORS:

Director

Director

See notes to financial statements OBARA & COM PANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
4



HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)
Unrestricted Invested in Contingency
Operating Fund Capital Assets Fund 2017 2016

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
Excess of revenues over expenses
Amortization

Amortization of deferred contributions

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

$ 64,827 $ 49,207 $ 102,974 $ 217,008 % 180,306
4,566 - - 4,566 36,702
18,001 (18,001) - - .
(927) 927 - -
$ 86,467 $ 32,133 $ 102,974 S 221,574 $ 217,008
See notes to financial statements OBARA & COM PANY
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HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)
Total Total
2017 2016
REVENUES (Schedule 1)
Government grants $ 456,389 § 538,364
School tuition and fees 319,305 367,844
Camp fees 17,705 10,505
Gaming 21,200 20,949
Donations 311 1,657
Other grants 20,623 10,344
Amortization of deferred contributions (Note 7) 927 2,658
Fund raising 5,966 6,385
Uniforms 1,558 2,012
Interest 841 1,608
844,825 962,326
EXPENSES(Schedule 1)
Advertising 8,603 2,809
Amortization 18,001 17,789
Field trips 6,246 3,178
Fund raising 1,824 2,970
Insurance 5,132 5,043
Licenses and dues 719 603
Miscellaneous 2,584 1,548
Office expenses 12,885 12,572
Premise rental 66,369 62,334
Professional fees 18,312 19,406
Program Expenses 11,789 4,280
Repairs and maintenance 19,978 16,885
Staff development and training 1,674 2,939
Subcontract 14,762 32,989
Supplies 6,650 9,004
Transportation and travel 6,823 13,975
Uniforms 1,014 2,892
Venues - camp activities and expenditures 759 1,918
Wages and benefits 636,135 712,490
840,259 925,624
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ 4566 § 36,702
See notes to financial statements OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
6



HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses by Program
Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Schedule 1)

(Unaudited)
School Camp Special Needs 2017
Total
REVENUES
Government grants $ 230,189 $ $ 226,200 § 456,389
School tuition and fees 319,305 - - 319,305
Camp fees - 17,705 - 17,705
Gaming 1,200 20,000 - 21,200
Donations - 311 - 311
Other grants 20,623 . - 20,623
Amortization of deferred
contributions 927 - 927
Fund raising 5,966 - 5,966
Uniforms 1,558 - - 1,558
Interest 834 7 - 841
580,602 38,023 226,200 844,825
EXPENSES
Advertising 8,565 38 - 8,603
Amortization 18,001 - - 18,001
Field trips 6,246 - 6,246
Fund raising 1,824 - 1,824
Insurance 4,446 686 . 5,132
Licenses and dues 719 - 719
Miscellaneous 2,584 - « 2,584
Office expenses 12,632 253 - 12,885
Premise rental 59,583 6,786 - 66,369
Professional fees 17,176 1,136 - 18,312
Program Expenses 11,789 - - 11,789
Repairs and maintenance 18,338 1,640 - 19,978
Staff development and training 1,674 - - 1,674
Subcontract - E 14,762 14,762
Supplies 5,935 715 . 6,650
Transportation and travel 6,775 48 - 6,823
Uniforms 1,014 - - 1,014
Venues - camp activities and
expenditures - 759 - 759
Wages and benefits 310,106 10,077 315,952 636,135
487,407 22,138 330,714 840,259
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
EXPENSES OVER
REVENUES $ 93,195 $ 15885 & (104,514) $ 4,566

See notes to financial statements

OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS



HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)
2017 2016
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess Of Revenues Over Expenses $ 4,566 § 36,702
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization of capital assets 18,001 17,789
Amortization of deferred contributions (927) (2,658)
21,640 51,833
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable 6,434 (5,345)
Accounts payable (11,866) 8,355
Deferred revenue (18,537) (89,334)
Prepaid expenses 728 1,165
Goods and services tax payable 1,589 (939)
Wages payable and employee benefits payable (5,317) 10,796
(26,969) (75.302)
Cash flow from operating activities (5,329) {23,469)
INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of capital assets - (48,970)
Cash flow from (used by) investing activity - {48,870)
DECREASE IN CASH FLOW (5,329) (72,439)
Cash - beginning of year 308,224 380,663
CASH - END OF YEAR 302,895 308,224
CASH CONSISTS OF:
Cash S 182,481 $ 169,761
Cash - Camp 26,059 44 904
Term deposits 94355 = 93,559
$ 302,895 § 308,224

See notes to financial statements OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
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HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations (ASNFPQ).

2. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION
Hands On Summer Camp Society (the "Society") was incorporated under the Society Act of British
Columbia and its purpose is to foster and promote educational and recreational opportunities for all
children; to meet their individual communications needs, with an emphasis on Sign Language. The
Society is a registered charity within the meaning of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is therefore
exempt from income taxes.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments policy

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods,
financial assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains and
losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost. Transaction
costs on the acquisition, sale, or issue of financial instruments are expensed when incurred.

Fund accounting

Hands On Summer Camp Society follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.

The Operating Fund accounts for the Society's program delivery and administrative activities. This
fund reports unrestricted resources and restricted operating grants.

The Capital Asset Fund reports the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses related to Hands On
Summer Camp Society's capital assets.

The Contingency Fund reports resources set aside to cover costs in the event of fund shortages.

Revenue recognition

The Society recognizes revenues when they are earned, specifically when all the following conditions
are met:

+ services are provided or products are delivered to students
» there is clear evidence that an arrangement exists
« amounts are fixed or can be determined

« the ability to collect is reasonably assured.

(continues)

OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS




HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recorded when there is a reasonable assurance that the Society had
complied with and will continue to comply with, all the necessary conditions to obtain the grants.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standard for not-for-
profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in
the period in which they become known. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Capital assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the following rates:

Computer equipment 3 & 5 years
Computer software 3 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Signage 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

The Society regularly reviews its capital assets to eliminate obsolete items.

Capital assets acquired during the year but not placed into use are not amortized until they are placed
into use.

Contributed services

Volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year. Because of the difficulty in
determining their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Society is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. As of June 30, 2017 it is
management’s opinion that the Society is not exposed to significant credit, liquidity, market, currency
or interest risk.

OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
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HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)
CAPITAL ASSETS
2017 2016
Cost Accumulated Net book Net book
amortization value value
Computer equipment $ 66,648 % 52,576 $ 14,072 $ 24,410
Computer software 1,390 1,345 45 75
Furniture and equipment 49,747 31,687 18,060 25,234
Signage 2,295 2,066 229 688

5 120,080 $ 87,674 § 32,406 $ 50,407

DEFERRED REVENUES

2017 2018
Changes to deferred revenue balance are as follows:
Beginning balance $ 75,058 S 164,391
Less amounts transferred to income (60,948) (164,391)
Add amounts related to next year 42,411 75,058
Ending balance $ 56,521 $ 75,058

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL ASSETS

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represents assets funded by grants. The funds are
recognized as revenue as the related capital assets are amortized. The changes in the deferred
balance for the year are as follows:

2017 2016
Beginning balance $ 1,200 $ 3,858
Less: amortization in the year (927) (2,658)
Ending balance $ 273§ 1,200

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Society is dependent and receives approximately 54% (2016 - 56%) of its revenues from
Government funding arrangements. This continued support is necessary in the ongoing operations
and activities of the Society.

OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
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HANDS ON SUMMER CAMP SOCIETY
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)
9. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Society entered into a lease agreement on September 1, 2014 with respect to its Elementary
School premise. The lease expires on August 31, 2019 contains no renewal options.
The Society entered into a sublease agreement on August 1, 2015 with respect to its Middle School
premise. The lease expires on July 31, 2020.
Future minimum lease payments as at June 30, 2017, are as follows:
2018 $ 68,214
2019 31,580
2020 24,755
2021 2,067
10. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

OBARA & COMPANY

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of The Cridge Centre for the Family

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Cridge Centre for the Family,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2017, and the statements of
operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The
financial statements have been prepared by management based on the financial reporting
provisions of the Operating Agreement between The Cridge Centre for the Family and BC Housing
Management Commission ("BC Housing").

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Operating Agreement between The
Cridge Centre for the Family and BC Housing, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of The Cridge Centre for the Family as at March 31, 2017, and its results of operations and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the
Operating Agreement between The Cridge Centre for the Family and BC Housing.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(a) to the financial statements, which
describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to meet many purposes
and requirements of the Cridge Centre for the Family and to assist in complying with the reporting
provisions of the Operating Agreement referred to above. As a result, the financial statements
may not be suitable for another purpose.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Societies Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, the accounting
principles applied in preparing and presenting the financial statements in accordance with the
financial reporting provisions of the Operating Agreement have been applied on a basis consistent
with that of the preceding year.

Lns 44X
it

Chartered Professional Accountants

July 11, 2017
Victoria, Canada



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2017, with comparative figures for 2016

2017 2016
Assets
Current assets:
Cash (note 2) $ 397,330 $ 500,614
Accounts receivable 103,488 128,276
Inventories 1,318 1,332
Prepaid expenses 81,981 83,279
584,117 713,501
Investments and marketable securities (note 3) 6,501,760 5,667,957
Capital assets (note 4) 14,329,792 14,909,884
$ 21,415,669 $ 21,291,342
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
charges (note 5) $ 448,766 3 415,692
Employee benefit accruals (note 6) 519,183 479,183
Deferred donations (note 7) 245,184 212,773
Current portion of long-term debt 319,896 9,956,789
Current portion of deferred revenue - operating 523,631 540,308
Current portion of deferred revenue - capital 258,729 272,446
2,315,389 11,877,191
Long-term debt (note 8) 9,654,353 286,803
Deferred revenue - operating (note 9) 133,032 152,739
Deferred revenue - capital (note 9) 2,934,266 3,209,433
15,037,040 15,526,166
Net assets:
Endowment fund (note 10) 636,183 554,929
Invested in capital assets 1,162,548 1,184,413
Other funds (note 11) 2,963,396 2,690,228
Unrestricted 1,616,502 1,335,606
6,378,629 5,765,176
Commitments (note 14)
Contingencies (note 15)
o~ $ 21,415,669 $ 21,291,342

Seergccompanying notes io fi nancnﬁi statements.

(behaif of the Board

///' /”A’/" ) Director Director




THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

Capital Endowment Other Operating 2017 2016
Fund Fund Funds Fund Total Total
(note 10) (note 11) (Schedule)
Revenue:
Government contracts $ -$ -8 -$ 3,771,222% 3,771,222 % 3,767,881
Fee for service income - - - 1,791,675 1,791,675 1,750,512
Rents and leases - - - 2,268,347 2,268,347 2,257,470
Donations and bequests - - - 440,556 440,556 254,185
Amortization of deferred revenue 288,884 - - 19,707 308,591 301,799
Other income - - - 26,904 26,904 15,289
288,884 - - 8,318,411 8,607,295 8,347,136
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits - - - 4,814,300 4,814,300 4,644,887
Program costs - - - 1,714,861 1,714,861 1,656,046
Mortgage interest - - - 392,630 392,630 510,076
Occupancy - - - 763,914 763,914 625,840
Amortization of capital assets 607,321 - - - 607,321 543,173
Administration - - - 279,529 279,529 254,551
Professional fees - - - 90,838 90,838 142,269
Transportation - - - 43,131 43,131 46,132
607,321 - - 8,099,203 8,706,524 8,422,974
Program income (deficit) (318,437) - - 219,208 (99,229) (75,838)
Other income:
Capital gains and interest - - - 170,050 170,050 183,085
Unrealized gain (loss) - - - 533,871 533,871 (110,831)
- - - 703,921 703,921 72,254
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses (318,437) - - 923,129 604,692 (3,584)
Net assets, beginning of year 1,184,413 554,929 2,690,228 1,335,606 5,765,176 5,729,034
Contributions to endowment funds - 8,761 - - 8,761 39,726
Transfers:
Recovery of reserve expenses - - (78,265) 78,265 - -
Allocations to reserves - - 131,751 (131,751) - -
Net investment in capital assets 27,229 - - (27,229) - -
Mortgage principal 269,343 - - (269,343) - -
Allocation of investment income - 19,741 50,251 (69,992) - -
Allocation of fees - (3,801) - 3,801 - -
Recovery of disbursements - - (18,000) 18,000 - -
Allocation of unrealized gain - 56,553 187,431 (243,984) - -

Net assets, end of year

$

1,162,548 $ 636,183 $ 2,963,396 $

1,616,502 $ 6,378,629 § 5,765,176

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017 2016
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 604,692 (3,584)
Endowment funds received 8,761 39,726
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 607,321 543,173
Earned deferred donations (60,704) (40,863)
Unrealized gain on investment portfolio (533,871) 110,831
Earned property lease (19,707) (19,707)
Forgiveness of capital grant (7,117) (17,080)
Amortization of deferred revenue - capital (281,767) (265,012)
317,608 347,484
Change in non-cash operating working capital (note 12) 82,497 (196,812)
400,105 150,672
Financing:
Deferred revenue - capital received - 10,939
Mortgage principal repayments (269,343) (212,079)
Deferred donations received 93,115 72,126
(176,228) (129,014)
Investments:
Net purchase of investments and marketable securities (299,932) (493,871)
Purchase of capital assets (27,229) (260,235)
(327,161) (754,106)
Decrease in cash (103,284) (732,448)
Cash, beginning of year 500,614 1,233,062
Cash, end of year $ 397,330 500,614

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

The Cridge Centre for the Family (the "Society") is incorporated under the Society Act (British
Columbia) and its principal business activities are the provision of social services to families including
child care, supportive and transition housing, respite care, residence for survivors of brain injury and
seniors' assisted living housing. The Society is a charitable organization registered under the Income
Tax Act and, as such, is exempt from income taxes and able to issue donation receipts for income
tax purposes. On November 28, 2016, the new Societies Act (British Columbia) became effective.
The Society has until November 28, 2018 to transition to the new act.

1. Significant accounting policies:

(a)

Basis of presentation:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the significant accounting
policies set out below in order to comply with the Society’'s agreement with the B.C.
Housing Management Commission ("BC Housing"). The basis of accounting used in these
financial statements materially differs from Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations because amortization is not provided on Brain Injury House and the Senior's
Centre over the estimated useful lives of these assets but rather at a rate equal to the
annual principal reduction of the mortgages; and specific capital assets purchased from
funding received from BC Housing are charged to operations in the year the expenditure is
incurred rather than being capitalized and amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Fund descriptions:

The Capital Fund reports resources that are to be used for capital activities relating to the
ongoing programs and facilities.

The Endowment Fund reports resources contributed for endowment.

The Other Fund reports externally and internally restricted reserves for specified programs
and purposes.

The Operating Fund accounts for the operations of social services provided to families
including child care, supportive and transition housing, respite care, residence for survivors
of brain injury and seniors' assisted living. Funding is primarily from government
organizations, fee for service income and rents.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c)

Revenue recognition:

The Society follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
donations and government grants.

The Society receives funding from several government sources, primarily at the provincial
level. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants
approved, but not received, at the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a
portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that subsequent
period.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions, other than endowment contributions, are recognized as
revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted
for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line
basis at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net assets.
Restricted investment income is recognized in revenue in the year in which the related

expenses are incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue as it is
earned.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d)

Capital assets:

Capital assets are stated at cost, except for the original land and 1893 building located on
Kings Road which are valued at the nominal amount of $1. Amortization is provided using
the following basis and annual rates:

Asset Basis Rate
Building improvements - Kings Road ~ Straight-line 5-15years
Building improvements - Kings Road -

slate roof Straight-line 50 years
Building - housing Straight-line 25 years
Building improvements - housing Straight-line 10 - 20 years
Building - Senior's Centre Principal reduction for the year
Building - Child Care Centre Straight-line 20 years
Building - Brain Injury House Principal reduction for the year
Building - Cridge Transition House for

Women Straight-line 25 years
Furniture and equipment Straight-line 5 years
Computer equipment Straight-line 3 years
Vehicles Straight-line 5 years

When a capital asset no longer contributes to the Society's ability to provide services, its
carrying value is written down to its residual value.

Replacement and vacancy reserves:

Maijor repairs and replacement of equipment are provided for by an annual transfer from
operations and accumulated in the BC Housing replacement reserve in Other Funds. The
cost of replacements is charged to operations in the year the expense is incurred and
recovered from the reserve through a fund transfer when incurred. Other replacement and
vacancy reserve transfers are recorded as fund transfers in the statement of operations
and changes in net assets.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f)

Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Investments that are
quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value and all changes in the
fair value are recognized in net income in the period incurred. All other financial instruments
are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has elected to
carry the instruments at fair value. The Society has not elected to carry any such financial
instruments at fair value.

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are
amortized using straight-line method.

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal
year if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Society
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of
future cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the
expected cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of
the present value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from selling
the financial asset or the amount the Society expects to realize by exercising its right to any
collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be
reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.

Employee future benefits:

The Society and its employees contribute to a multi-employer plan for health related
benefits, administered by the Community Services Benefit Trust and to the Municipal
Pension Plan, a multi-employer defined benefit plan for pension benefits. Contributions to
the plans are expensed as incurred.

The Society accrues sick leave liability for employees equal to 50% of the total hours
included in the sick bank at year end. This amount is included in accrued employee benefit
accruals.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h)

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the period. ltems requiring the use of significant estimates
include the estimated useful life of capital assets and the estimated sick leave liability.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Contributed materials and services:

Donated materials and services are recognized in the financial statements when a fair
value can be reasonably established, when the materials and services are used in the
normal course of operations and would otherwise have been purchased.

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year.
Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

Cash:
2017 2016
Cash held at financial institutions $ 391,230 $ 494714
Petty cash 6,100 5,900
$ 397,330 3 500,614
Unrestricted cash $ 397,330 $ 495,111
Restricted cash - Replacement Reserve Fund - 5,503
3 397,330 $ 500,614

The Restricted cash - Replacement Reserve Fund is invested in marketable securities (note 3).
The amount remaining in restricted cash is cash on hand in the investment portfolio related to
these restricted funds.



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

3. Investments and marketable securities:

Investments are recorded at quoted market values.

2017 2016
General Fund:
Fixed income $ 1,307,526 $ 1,120,819
Mutual funds - Canadian equity 31,432 2,958
Canadian equities 1,137,247 1,012,670
Mutual funds - foreign equity 384,132 217,613
Foreign equity 731,653 793,148
3,691,890 3,147,208
Endowment Fund:
Fixed income 210,989 141,146
Mutual funds - Canadian equity 57,676 4,564
Canadian equities 186,726 183,401
Mutual funds - foreign equity 77,652 94,540
Foreign equity 101,713 84,338
634,756 507,989
Sub total General and Endowment Funds 4,226,646 3,655,197
Zoie Gardner Endowment Fund:
Fixed income 473,900 375,873
Mutual funds - Canadian equity 188,463 227,303
Canadian equities 384,569 302,514
Mutual funds - foreign equity 159,607 118,186
Foreign equity 569,584 496,688
1,776,123 1,520,564
Replacement Reserve Fund - Restricted:
Fixed income 442 402 301,730
Mutual funds - Canadian equity 56,589 190,466
498,991 492 196
$ 6,501,760 $ 5,667,957




THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

4. Capital assets:

2017
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
Original land and building - Kings Road $ 1 9 - % 1
Land 385,314 - 385,314
Building - Senior's Centre 13,759,169 2,020,410 11,738,759
Building - Child Care Centre 2,442,080 1,495,356 946,724
Building improvements - Kings Road 657,430 43,305 614,125
Building - housing 698,904 613,233 85,671
Building improvements - housing 1,070,982 764,992 305,990
Building - Cridge Transition House for
Women 530,053 530,053 -
Building - Brain Injury House 444 564 338,196 106,368
Furniture and equipment 1,009,120 891,419 117,701
Computer equipment 214,819 199,195 15,624
Vehicles 454,663 441,148 13,515
$ 2166709 $ 7,337,307 $ 14,329,792
2016
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
Original land and building - Kings Road $ 1 % -3 1
Land 385,314 - 385,314
Building - Senior's Centre 13,759,169 1,726,329 12,032,840
Building - Child Care Centre 2,442,080 1,373,252 1,068,828
Building improvements - Kings Road 657,430 30,258 627,172
Building - housing 698,904 593,058 105,846
Building improvements - housing 1,070,982 701,232 369,750
Building - Cridge Transition House for
Women 530,053 530,053 -
Building - Brain Injury House 444,564 311,544 133,020
Furniture and equipment 987,805 857,174 130,631
Computer equipment 211,506 190,859 20,647
Vehicles 454,663 418,828 35,835
$ 21642471 $ 6,732,587 $ 14,909,884
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

5. Accounts payable and accrued charges:
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at March 31, 2017 are government

remittances payable of $16,373 (2016 — $15,187) relating to federal and provincial sales taxes,
payroll taxes, health taxes and workers’ safety insurance.

6. Employee benefit accruals:

2017 2016

Accrued sick bank $ 391,635 $ 354,845
Accrued vacation 91,935 88,725
Other accruals 35,613 35,613
$ 519,183 $ 479,183

7. Deferred donations:

Deferred donations consist of donations received for specific expenditures which will be incurred
in subsequent years.

2017 2016
Berwick House $ 628 3 628
Young Parent Outreach program funds 5,086 6,086
Day care program funds 5,609 10,207
Dovetail program funds 20,017 1,850
Cridge Transition House for Women funds 16,936 10,690
Cridge Transition House for Women contingency
donations 12,700 12,042
Housing children fund 365 365
TBI funds 51,888 45,721
Anonymous donations 35,028 34,329
Respitality donation 20,655 12,955
Property purchase fund 10,000 10,000
Taylor building roof/repointing fund 12,968 12,968
Senior's Centre funds 9,384 11,012
Special Trust donation 43,920 43,920
$ 245,184 3 212,773
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

8. Long-term debt:

2017 2016
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, ("CMHC"),
interest at 2.93% due August 1, 2021, repayable at
$2,951 principal and interest per month, secured by the
Head Injury Residence $ 286,803 $ 313,455
Great West Life mortgage, interest at 5.05%, due
November 1, 2016, repayable at $57,299 principal and
interest per month, secured by land and buildings located
on Kings Road (aka 1307 Hillside Avenue). - 9,930,137
Peoples Trust Company, interest at 2.385%, due
November 1, 2026, repayable at $43,268 principal and
interest per month secured by land and buildings located
at Kings Road (aka 1307 Hillside Avenue) 9,687,446 -
9,974,249 10,243,592
Less current portion long-term debt 319,896 9,956,789
$ 9,654,353 3 286,803

Principal repayments due on long-term debt for each of the next five years and thereafter under
these terms are as follows:

2018 $ 319,896
2019 327,722
2020 335,727
2021 343,969
2022 493,758
Thereafter 8,153,177

$ 9,974,249

12



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

9. Deferred revenue:

2017 2016

Operating:
Capital Region Housing Corporation lease
commenced January 1, 1984. Initial deferred
amount of $808,000 is being brought into income
over the 41 year term of the lease at $19,707
annually $ 152,739 $ 172,446

Grants and revenue received in advance of services
rendered 503,924 520,601
656,663 693,047

Less current portion 523,631 540,308

$ 133,032 $ 152,739

2017 2016

Capital:
Colonel Harland Sanders Charitable Foundation and
Queen Alexandra Foundation (now known as Children's
Health Foundation of Vancouver Island) each donated
$1,000,000. Private donations and a grant from the
Province of BC make up the balance of the initial
deferred amounts for the Child Care Centre totalling
$2,415,589 which are being brought into income over 20
years, commencing January 2005 at $120,779 annually ¢ 936,454 $ 1,057,234

CMHC and Ministry of Social Services and Housing grants
on Cridge Transition House of Women commencing May
31, 1991. Initial deferred amounts totalling $427,000 are
being brought into income over 25 years at $17,080

annually - 7117

CMHC forgivable loan of $558,000 bearing interest at
8.125% and Real Estate Foundation of British Columbia
grant of $22,000 related to the Residential Rehabilitation
Assistance Program for housing renovations. Both loans
will be brought into income over 15 years commencing
June 1, 2002 in the amount of $38,666 - 38,667

Balance carried forward 936,454 1,103,018

13



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

9. Deferred revenue (continued):

2017

2016

Balance brought forward

Private donations, grants and remainder trust is the
funding towards the Senior's Centre which opened
November 2006. Initial deferred amounts of $1,275,092
are being brought into income over 35 years at $36,431
annually

Private donations and grants received from The Real
Estate Foundation of B.C., The Victoria Foundation,
Coast Capital Savings Credit Union, City of Victoria,
United Way of Greater Victoria, and the Capital Regional
District were used towards the renovations of two six
bedroom townhouses into eight one bedroom units for
transitional housing for women. The project completed at
the end of October 2009. The initial deferred amount of
$329,608 is being brought into income over 20 years

CMHC forgivable loan of $1,000,000 for the building of the
Senior's Centre commencing December 1, 2006. The 35
year forgivable loan will be brought into income starting
in the eleventh year (2017) at a rate of $40,000 per year
for the final 25 years of the mortgage, provided the
Society continues to meet the terms and conditions of the
forgivable loan

CMHC forgivable loan of $360,000 bearing interest at
7.625% related to the Residential Rehabilitation
Assistance Program for housing renovations for the
heritage building to be earned over 15 years,
commencing December 1, 2006. The forgivable loan will
be brought into income each year for the next 15 years at
a rate of $24,000 per year, provided the Society
continues to meet the terms and conditions of the
forgivable loan

Private donation for the replacement of kitchen cabinets at
the brain injury residence was received in June 2011.
Initial deferred amount of $8,400 is being brought into
income over 10 years at $840 annually

936,454

898,703

207,427

983,562

112,044

3,464

1,103,018

935,134

223,907

1,000,000

136,044

4,304

Balance carried forward

14
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

9. Deferred revenue (continued):

2017

2016

Balance brought forward 3,141,654

Rotary Club of Victoria - Habourside Foundation donated
$10,000 to purchase a used van for the Young Parent
Outreach Program. It will be brought into income over 5
years commencing May 31, 2012 in the amount of
$2,000 annually 334

The Child Care Centre received a Variety Club - The
Children's Charity grant and a donation from CFAX
Santa's Anonymous to purchase a new handicapped
accessible van in 2012. Initial deferred amount of
$57,000 is being brought into income over 5 years at
$11,400 annually 5,132

The Cridge Transition House for Women received
donations to purchase a new van on February 17, 2014.
Initial deferred amount of $14,236 is being brought into
income over 5 years at $2,847 annually 5,351

The Child Care Centre received donations towards the
purchase of new playground equipment which installed
February 28, 2015. Initial deferred amount of $53,952 is
being brought into income over 5 years at $10,790
annually 31,455

The Cridge Transition House received private donations for
the replacement of kitchen cabinets & countertops in July
2015. Initial deferred amount of $10,939 is being brought
into income over 10 years at $1,094 annually 9,069

3,402,407

2,334

16,532

8,198

42,246

10,162

3,192,995

Less current portion 258,729

3,481,879

272,446

$ 2,934,266

$

3,209,433

15



THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

10. Endowment Fund:

2017 2016

Externally restricted:
Mary Cridge Endowment - Awards Fund $ 9,857 $ 9,857
Coast Capital Savings Endowment 20,475 20,475
Margaret T. Clinch Endowment 153,823 153,823
Edward and Jeannine Cridge Endowment 24,500 24,500
Respitality Victoria Endowment 94,878 94 878
Keys in Hand Endowment 43,553 39,292
Endowment accrued interest 3,024 2,141
Ranica Endowment 5,158 658
355,268 345,624

Internally restricted:
Undistributed endowment earnings 280,915 209,305
$ 636,183 $ 554,929

11. Other funds:

2017 2016

Externally restricted:
Zoie Gardner Fund $ 1,823,456 $ 1,611,179
Replacement Reserve 498,991 497 699
2,322,447 2,108,878

Internally restricted:
Replacement Reserve 561,261 504,095
Vacancy Reserve 53,705 47,255
TBI Reserve 25,983 30,000
640,949 581,350
$ 2,963,396 $ 2,690,228
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

12.

13.

Change in non-cash operating working capital:

2017 2016
Accounts receivable $ 24,788 3 (25,822)
Inventory 14 14
Prepaid expenses 1,298 9,571
Accounts payable and accrued changes 33,074 (250,561)
Employee benefit accruals 40,000 14,057
Deferred revenue - operating (16,677) 55,929
$ 82,497 $ (196,812)

Related party - Cridge Housing Society:

The Cridge Centre for the Family is related to the Cridge Housing Society as the boards of both
organizations are comprised of the same directors. The Cridge Housing Society is incorporated
under the Society Act (British Columbia).

The purpose of the Cridge Housing Society is to hold land leased from the Provincial Rental
Housing Corporation and buildings mortgaged through BC Housing. The assets are restricted to
be used for the purpose of providing rental housing to families and persons with disabilities. The
Homes BC Operating Agreement related to the assets was assigned to Capital Region Housing
Corporation. Current annual lease payments from Capital Regional Housing Corporation to the
Cridge Housing Society are $231,000 and are based on the annual mortgage payments.

The Cridge Housing Society has not been consolidated in the Cridge Centre for the Family's
financial statements. As at March 31, 2017, the Cridge Housing Society had total assets of
$3,383,265 (2016 - $3,532,919), total liabilities of $3,383,120 (2016 - $3,532,749), and total fund
balances of $145 (2016 - $170).

As at March 31, 2017, there are no amounts owing from or to the Cridge Housing Society to the
Cridge Centre for the Family nor were there any transactions reported in revenues or expenses
between the organizations.
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

14. Commitments:

15.

16.

The Society rents equipment and contracts services under operating leases. Commitments for
minimum annual lease payments for the next five years and thereafter under the various
operating leases are as follows:

2018 $ 159,000
2019 141,200
2020 87,400
2021 10,200
2022 1,800
Thereafter 6,900

$ 406,500

Contingencies:

CMHC has provided the Society with forgivable loans totalling $1,918,000 (note 9) to enable the
Society to build the Senior's Centre and complete housing renovations for the Residential
Rehabilitation Assistance Program. The loan is being brought into income over the useful life of
the associated assets. The remaining balance of these loans is $1,095,605 (2016 - $1,174,711).
There is no requirement to repay these funds other than as a result of an event of default under
the agreement with CMHC.

Employee future benefits:

(a)

Municipal Pension Plan

The Society and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the "Plan"), a
jointly trusteed pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and
employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including investment
of the assets and administration of benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer contributory
pension plan. Basic pension benefits provided are defined. The plan has about 189,000
active members and approximately 85,000 retired members.

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the
Plan and the adequacy of Plan funding. The most recent valuation as at December 31,
2015 indicated a $2,224 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits. The next
valuation will be as at December 31, 2018, with results available later in 2019. The actuary
does not attribute portions of the unfunded liability to individual employers. The Society paid
$268,173 (2016 - $255,712) for employer contributions to the plan in fiscal 2017.
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

16.

17.

Employee future benefits: (continued):

(b) Community Services Benefit Trust

The Society and its employees contribute to the Community Services Benefit Trust, a multi-
employer plan for long-term disability, group life insurance, accidental and serious iliness,
extended health, dental and medical service premiums. The Society paid $356,539 for

employer contributions to the Community Services Benefit Trust in fiscal 2017 (2016 -
$328,788).

Financial risks and concentration of risk:
(a) Foreign currency risk:

The Society holds investments in equities outside of Canada which are subject to foreign
exchange risk. At March 31, 2017, the Society held foreign investments with a fair value of
$2,024,241 (2016 - $1,804,5135).

(b) Interest rate risk:

The Society's long-term debt has fixed interest rates until August 1, 2021 and November 1,
2026 (note 8). The Society is not subject to interest rate risk until refinancing of this long-
term debt.

The Society is exposed to interest rate risk related to its investments in fixed income funds.
The fair value of these funds is directly impacted by changes in interest rates.

(c) Creditrisk:

Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions and credit exposure to
accounts receivable balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying
value of the financial assets. The Society assesses the credit quality of the counter parties,
taking into account their financial position, past experience, and other factors. It is
management'’s opinion that the Society is not exposed to significant credit risk.

Interest rate and credit risk are managed through the Society's policy of dealing with high
credit quality financial institutions and its Investment Policy which specifies the required
asset mix and eligible securities permitted within its investment portfolio.

(d) Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely
basis or at a reasonable cost. The Society manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its
operating requirements. The Society prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has
sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.

There has been no change to the risk exposures from 2016.
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2017

18. Employee and contractor remuneration

The BC Societies Act came into effect on November 28, 2016. The Act has a requirement for
the disclosure in the financial statements of the remuneration of directors, employees and
contractors for financial statements prepared after November 28, 2016. For employee and
contractor remuneration the requirement is to disclose amounts paid to individuals whose
remuneration was greater than $75,000. For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2017, the Society
paid remuneration of $573,158 to 6 employees, each of whom received total annual
remuneration of $75,000 or greater. There were no remuneration payments made to directors.
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THE CRIDGE CENTRE FOR THE FAMILY

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Schedule
Year ended March 31, 2016
Endowment Other Operating
Capital Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
(note 10) (note 11)
Revenue:
Government contracts $ - $ - 9 - $ 3,767,881 $ 3,767,881
Fee for service income - - e 1,750,512 1,750,512
Rents and leases s = - 2,257,470 2,257,470
Donations and bequests - - - 254,185 254,185
Amortization of deferred
revenue 282,092 - - 19,707 301,799
Other income = - - 15,289 15,289
282,092 - - 8,065,044 8,347,136
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits - - - 4,644,887 4,644,887
Program costs - - - 1,656,046 1,656,046
Mortgage interest = = - 510,076 510,076
Occupancy - - - 625,840 625,840
Amortization of capital assets 543,173 - - - 543,173
Administration = - - 254,551 254,551
Professional fees = = - 142,269 142,269
Transportation - - - 46,132 46,132
543,173 - - 7,879,801 8,422,974
Program income (deficit) (261,081) - - 185,243 (75,838)
Other income:
Capital gains and interest - = - 183,085 183,085
Unrealized loss - - - (110,831) (110,831)
5 . - 72,254 72,254
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses (261,081) - - 257,497 (3,584)
Net assets, beginning of year 984,119 550,267 2,594,350 1,600,298 5,729,034
Contributions to endowment
funds - 1,266 38,460 - 39,726
Transfers:
Recovery of reserve expenses - = (52,352) 52,352 -
Allocations to reserves 5 = 128,885 (128,885) -
Net investment in capital assets 249,296 - - (249,296) -
Mortgage principal 212,079 - - (212,079) =
Allocation of investment income - 24,178 31,888 (56,066) -
Allocation of fees - (3,706) - 3,706 -
Recovery of disbursements 5 = (7,000) 7,000 .
Allocation of unrealized loss - (17,076) (44,003) 61,079 -
TBI restriction - - - - -
Net assets, end of year $1,184,413 $ 554,929 $ 2,690,228 $ 1,335606 $ 5,765,176
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APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

VI CTO R lA (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

5. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY: Please provide a brief description of any commercial activities
that your organization conducts on this property.

Mo NE

6. LEASED SPACE: Please attach any and all lease agreements for any portion of the
identified property that your organization rents or ieases to another organization or individual.

7. CATEGORY: Please select the applicable permissive tax exemption category for which you
are applying. For further explanation of permissive tax exemption categories please read the
full text of the Permissive Tax Exemption policy found at www.victoria.ca/permissive.

Social Service m Arts & Cuitural Facility D
Place of Worship D Athletic/Recreational Facility D
Rail/Track Property D

Educational Facility: Independent School Classification: Group 1 [:] 2[] BD 4 D

Supportive Housing
e Temporary or transitional housing D

e Treatment program .
o Permanent facility KC S C/r ,«\f, M’) (’ aie. ;{/,rﬂ{ ’1@/ %:’\{@J \
« Supportive staff D [ k)/qf mﬂ\,u,i,l/ﬁ: Qﬁjfggc(/’:zjf};aﬁJj
e Group home D /

e Special needs/disability housing D

8. PUBLIC ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: All recipients of City of Victoria permissive tax exemptions
are required to publicly acknowledge the exemption. How does your organization plan on
publicly acknowledging the exemption?

— ﬂ‘”g( e By saol meod Carc WéS/?é'
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APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

VICTORIA (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

1. IDENTIFICATION OF APPLICANT:
Organization name: 5)" osd 77545/ ()‘7" < SOO {’fﬁ' // 30 Uéé? fa m ZO{{,ji>
Are you registered under the Societies Act? Yes ; No D
Are you a registered charity? Yes [2/ No D

Py I . f . > . ) i
Mailing Address; 4571 C/\‘f'ﬁ&”f@" W""‘y LV Torid 8C ¥9x 4Y7
: : W@ 7 ' ‘ / / Conr
Contact Person: Dmﬂ"{ C/{leﬂ‘?/ aék Email Address: da v "/- C—/‘sc]'pe'a'ék é)é{vq meadCark, (an
2 [ =
Telephone Number:(g-ﬂ’) é 58-3200 Fax Number: &5“‘) 53— 0%3
Preferred method of application reminder: Email D Mail B/
2. PROPERTY (complete a separate form for each property) ‘
i A 0 IS ({’L\/!
Folio Number: Address._ 30 g’f?\(oc 6271; Viclgria V64 *
Legal Descriptionf 10 006-29( ~i33 Lot 1, Beckley Farm Ui Torig City . P /em 34277
-’ »

0 i /
Registered Owner (if different than above): 15;”&&’0/ m(’z’»z r - S; </ Eﬁf/

3. ABOUT YOUR ORGANIZATION: Please provide a brief description of the goa{ and
objectives of the organization.

/p /" Gse See m?%'{:/{aﬁ }'rrz, ?(g/ &7 o .

4. PRINCIPAL USE OF THIS PROPERTY: Please provide a brief description of the principal
use of the property and how this use benefits the community.

../<‘€§‘;6£A717'j (“ﬂq}pzex Care |
~  Adult 07 ﬂdfﬁzﬂ\ (//gf &Ze/mb
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9.

APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

V ' CTO R IA (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

EINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Attach your most recent financial statements.

10. PROPERTY_OWNERSHIP: Do you plan on selling any portion of the property during

1.

2017 - 20197

Yes D No E

DECLARATION:

| am an authorized signing officer of the organization and | certify that the information given in
this application is correct. Should a permissive tax exemption be granted on the above listed
property, | agree to the following terms:

o If the property is sold prior to the exemption expiration, the organization will remit to the
City an amount equal to the taxes that would have otherwise been payable to the City by
a non-exempt owner.

e The property use will be in compliance with ail applicable municipal policies and bylaws.

o The organization will publicly acknowledge the permissive tax exemption granted by the
City.

| 7 9/
&J Chipdefi CEO
/

Signature Position

Dgx Lf‘(v/ i (»»A:pffp/é"é’ A /7;'“7// / 71 207 Y

Name (please print) / Date’ 7




BROADMEAD CARE

Exceptionagi Lare. LXCEpLional reopie.

April 19, 2018
Permissive Tax Exemption Application for:
Beckley Farm Lodge (BFL): Program Description
Additional information

Background:

Beckley Farm Lodge is now owned and operated by Broadmead Care Society — a non-
profit organization that provides care and services to seniors and adults with disabilities
throughout southern Vancouver Island. Broadmead Care also operates the Veterans
Memorial Lodge at Broadmead, Veterans Health Centre, Nigel House, Rest Haven
Lodge and the Better at Home Program in Saanich and the Peninsula.

Starting in early 2016, Broadmead Care and Beckley Farm Lodge Society entered a
collaborative process to determine if there was a sound rationale for BFL to merge with
Broadmead Care. For a number of years BFL had been experiencing significant
operational and financial challenges and their future looked increasingly at risk. This
collaboration resulted in the Boards of Directors of both organizations agreeing to a
merger that became effective on April 1, 2017.

Broadmead Care will continue to operate BFL under the “Beckley Farm Lodge” name
and will build on the legacy of quality senior’s care that Beckley Farm Lodge Society
established during the past 30+ years. Broadmead Care is already investing significant
effort and resources to improve the Lodge building (which was opened in 1982 and is
aging) and particularly focusing on further improving the program of care in the Lodge.

BFL has had significant financial challenges and Broadmead Care is working on
addressing this problem by integrating BFL into its operations to achieve operational
efficiencies and cost reductions in administration and other areas wherever possible.

Beckley Farm Lodge services:

Residential care: BFL provides 64 residential complex care beds for seniors in the
James Bay community plus one more respite bed that is used by the Adult Day
Program. Residents admitted to the Lodge have significant and complex care
requirements and most have some form of dementia. The Lodge provides 24x7 nursing
care and personal assistance for most daily activities (such as dressing, bathing,
grooming, eating etc). Medical care is provided by physicians who are part of the
Broadmead Care Physician Group. These physicians are committed to provide medical
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care consistent with established provincial standards. The quality of life for residents is
significantly enhanced through a planned Activity Program that provides a wide range of
experiences, events, music, creative arts and other activities.

Adult Day Programs and Community Outreach: Combined the BFL Adult Day
Programs provide almost 7000 community client spaces per year! Beckley Farm
Lodge’s outreach and adult day programs provide recreational and meal programs at
the Lodge and also at two off-site locations in the James Bay community. The goal of
these outreach programs is to reduce isolation and loneliness for seniors living in the
community who have a wide range of physical and cognitive issues. Programming
includes exercise classes, games, guided walks, and lunch and dinner outings.

Day Program clients have access to an overnight respite program at the Lodge that can
allow families much needed short term respite care.

A bathing program in a specialized and dedicated tub room at the Lodge is offered to
those in the community who require assistance with bathing.

Planned use of funds should the application for an exemption be approved:

The BFL building (now almost 40 years old), and program and services have a
significant number of needs that Broadmead Care plans to address in the coming
months and years. Cost savings from a permissive tax exemption would be very helpful
in addressing these needs. Broadmead Care is adding BFL building and program
needs to its fundraising plan and will continue to work with BFL volunteers who have
supported BFL in the past.

Broadmead Care appreciates the opportunity to submit this request for a permissive
property tax exemption for Beckley Farm Lodge. We thank the Victoria City Council for
considering this application and look forward to your reply.

David Cheperdak W

Chief Executive Officer

Broadmead Care
David.cheperdak@broadmeadcare.com
(250)658-3200




Financial Statements of
BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Year ended March 31, 2017 (immediately prior to the
transfer of operations to Broadmead Care Society)



Kb

KPMG LLP

St. Andrew’s Square i
800-730 View Street
Victoria BC V8W 3Y7
Canada

Telephone 250-480-3500
Fax 250-480-3539

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Beckiey Farm Lodge Society

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beckley Farm Lodge
Society, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2017, the
statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in alil material respects, the
financial position of Beckley Farm Lodge Society as at March 31, 2017, and its results of

operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements
which indicates that Beckley Farm Lodge Society is transferring its assets, liabilities, and
fund balances to Broadmead Care Society effective April 1, 2017. This is the final
reporting period for the entity immediately prior to the transfer.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Societies Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, the
accounting policies applied in preparing and presenting the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations have
been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding period.

“rs <

Chartered Professional Accountants

June 12, 2017
Victoria, Canada



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

Adult Day
Replacement Care Centre Donations Total Total
Operating Fund  Reserve Fund Capital Fund Fund Fund 2017 2016
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and term deposits $ 248252 § - $ - $ 4818 64,998 3 318,169 § 385,621
Accounts and other receivables (note 3) 50,755 - - 5,824 251 58,830 116,355
Prepaid expenses 12,454 - - 43 - 12,497 14,507
Receivable from Beckley Farm Lodge Foundation {note 13) - - - - - - 134
Receivable from (payabie to} other funds 27,351 {294) 35,134 {57,702) (4,489) - -
338,812 {284) 35,134 {46,918) 80,760 387,406 516,617
Capital assets (note 4) - - 4,028,402 2,240 91,971 4,122,613 4,100,507
Restricted cash . 223,736 - - - 223,736 219,378
$ 338,812 § 223442 $ 40635368 $ {44 B78) 162,731 8 4733845 § 4,836,502
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 5) $ 589,338 $ - $ - $ 16,824 2,500 § 608,660 § 594,759
Deferred revenue 2,089 - “ - - 2,089 9,875
Current portion of long term liabilities 54,204 - - - - 54,204 175,180
845,629 - - 16,824 2,500 664,953 779,814
Long-term debt (note &) = - . o - . .
Post-employment benefit liability (note 7) 318,303 . - - . 318,303 320,622
Fund Balances:
Externally restricted:
Replacement reserve (note 8) - 223,442 “ - - 223,442 219,148
Capital grants (note 9) - - 220,584 - - 220,584 340,000
Unrestricted {625,120} - - (63,740) 150,231 (538,629) (818,757)
Invested in capital assets - - 3,842 952 2,240 - 3,845,192 3,993,674
(625,120) 223,442 4,083,536 {61,500) 150,231 3,750,589 3,736,066
$ 338812 § 223,442 $ 40683538 § (44,678) 152,731 $ 4733845 § 4,836,502

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Board

Director

SN
o —

Director



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances

Year ended March 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

Aduit Day
Replacement Care Centre Donations Total Total
Operating Fund Reserve Fund Capitai Fund Fund Fund 2017 2016
Revenues:
Vancouver Island Health Authority grani 3 3525223 § - 8 - 8 374444 % - § 380998667 § 4,423,559
Fees from residents 1,420697 - - 41,565 - 1,482,262 1,339,159
Contribution from Beckley Famm Lodge Foundation - - 1,292 152,884 154,186 5,238
Government grants 6,380 - - - - 6,389 68,611
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation
mortgage interest subsidy 13,182 - - - - 13,182 26,364
Other (note 10) 67,621 - - 14,200 - 81,821 74,713
Donations - - - - 11,997 11,807 -
Interest income 164 - - 5] 2 172 268
6,033,276 - - 431,607 164,893 5,629,678 5,937,912
Expenses:
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 4,248.600 - B 353,591 - 4,803,191 4,616,853
Mortgage interest 437 - - - 437 3,112
Food and supplies 385,112 - 18,200 - 383,312 356,839
Utilities 155,006 - ~ - - 155,006 128,783
Property taxes 47,700 . - “ - 47,700 48,291
Repairs and maintenance 59,087 - “ 168 59,265 53,605
Office and administration 56,682 - 3,871 508 80,862 46,198
Audit 18,658 - 1,820 625 20,800 11,562
Insurance 26,848 - - - - 26,849 26,400
Replacement reserve expenditures - 29872 - - - 9,972 21,088
Amortization - 223881 560 B 224,441 245,365
Program costs = - - 39 485 1,521 41,006 42,701
4,879,138 8972 223881 417,127 2,823 5,632,941 5,601,
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 54,138 (8.972) (223,881) 14,380 162,070 (3,285) 336,015
Fund balances, beginning of year (740,013) 219,149 4,330,874 {75,880) 1,936 3,736,066 3,394,534
Remeasurement gains (note 7) 17,788 - - - 17,788 5,517
interfund transfers:
Replacement reserve provision {14,265) 14,265 - - - -
Transfer between donations and operations 13776 “ - - {13,775) - “
Capital assets 150,291 - {150,281) - . -
Principal repayment of mortgage (106,834) - 108,834 - -
Fund balances, end of year $ (625,120 $ 223442 $ 4,083,536 $ (61,500) $ 150,231 § 3,750,589 § 3,736,066

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2018

2017 2016
Cash and term deposits provided by (used in):
Operations:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ (3,265) $ 336,015

Less transfer of capital assets from Foundation (95,290) -

Add amortization, which does not involve cash 224 441 245,385

Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Accounts and other receivables 59,525 (46,528)
Receivable from Beckley Farm Lodge Foundation (15,002) 378
Prepaid expenses 2,010 25,354
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 13,901 (24,572)
Change in post employment benefit liability 16,462 (30,873)
Deferred revenue (7,786) (204,975)
184,996 300,161
Investing;

Additions to capital assets (151,256) (56,358)
Financing:

Repayment of mortgage {106,834) (180,788)
Decrease in cash and term deposits {63,094) 63,015
Cash and term deposits, beginning of year 804,999 541,084
Cash and term deposits, end of year $ 5419005 $ 604,999
Comprised of:

Cash and term deposits $ 318,169 § 385,621

Restricted cash - replacement reserve 223,736 219,378

$ 541,905 §$ 604,999

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

Beckley Farm Lodge Society (the “Society”) is incorporated under the Society Act (British Columbia)
and is a registered charity (exempt from income taxes) under the Income Tax Act (Canada). Its
principal activities are the operation of a not-for-profit senior citizens' long-term care facility (Beckley
Farm Lodge) and an adult day care centre, which are funded by Island Health.

1.

Transfer of operations:

Effective April 1, 2017, the assets, labilities and fund balances of the Society were acquired by
Broadmead Care Society (“BCS"). The Society signed a distribution agreement with BCS on
October 25, 2016 to transfer all operations, personnel, assets and labilities to BCS effective April
1, 2017. This reporting is immediately prior to the transfer to BCS. Upon completion of the
transfer, the Society will be dissolved.

Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Society have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations in Part lll of the CPA Canada
Handbook.

(a) Fund accounting:

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions. Accordingly,
the transactions of the Society are recorded in four funds as follows:

The Operating Fund accounts for the operation of a not-for-profit senior citizens' long-term
care facility which is funded primarily by Island Health.

The Capital Fund reports restricted resources that are to be used for capital activities for the
senior citizens’ long-term care facility.

The Adult Day Care Centre Fund is a restricted fund. It accounts for the operation of a not-
for-profit senior citizens' day care centre which is funded primarily by istand Health.

The Donations Fund reports restricted contributions received that are to be used to assist the
long-term care facility and the day care centre to provide high quality care for residents. To
this end, its activities include the acquisition, administration and allocation of funds for
education of staff and enhancement of resident care. The Donation Fund holds equipment
used in the delivery of care to residents.

The Replacement Reserve Fund reports the costs associated with repairs and maintenance
of the facility.



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition:

Restricted contributions related to general operations are recognized as revenue of the
Operating Fund in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate restricted fund if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

Fees from residents are recognized when they are earned, based on the period of occupancy
to which they relate.

Cash and term deposits:

Cash and term deposits are comprised of cash and term deposits that are highly liquid in
nature and have original maturity dates of three months or less.

Capital assets:

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at
their estimated fair market value determined at the date of contribution.

Amortization of building, furniture and equipment is provided on a declining balance basis
over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Asset ' Rate
Buildings 4%
Furniture and equipment 20-25%

When a capital asset no longer contributes to the Society’s ability to provide services, its
carrying amount is written down to its residual value.

Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Investments that are
quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value and all changes in the
fair value are recognized in net income in the period incurred. All other financial instruments
are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has elected to
carry the instruments at fair value. The Society has not elected to carry any such financial
instruments at fair value,

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently
at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are adjusted by
transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are amortized using the
straight-line method.



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e)

®

@

(h)

Financial instruments (continued):

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year
if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Society
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future
cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the expected
cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present
value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from selling the financial
asset or the amount the Society expects to realize by exercising its right to any collateral. If
events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be reversed to
the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.

Replacement reserve:

A separate replacement reserve is funded from operations in the amount of $14,265 per year
for future capital replacements.

Employee future benefits:

The Society and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan.
Contributions are expensed as incurred.

Sick leave and other retirement benefits are also available to the Society’'s employees. The
costs of these benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of
retirement ages and expected future salary and wage increases. The obligation under this
benefit plan is accrued based on projected benefits as the employees render services
necessary to earn the future benefits. Remeasurement gains or losses on actuarial valuation
of the benefits are recorded as an increase or decrease to the Operating fund balance.

Contributed services and supplies:

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year to
the Society. Because of the difficulty in determining fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

Contributed supplies and services that would otherwise have been purchased are recorded
at fair value at the date of contribution, provided a fair value can be reasonably determined.



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(i) Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such
estimates and assumptions inciude the determination of obligations related to employee
future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Accounts and other receivables:

2017 2018
Trade receivables $ 26,498 $ 84,789
Wages recoverable from Island Health 30,332 31,566
$ 56,830 $ 116,355

4. Capital assets:
Accumulated Net book
2017 Cost amortization value
l.and $ 57,944 $ - 3 57,944
Buildings 6,807,531 3,334,006 3,573,435
Furniture and equipment 1,859,452 1,468,218 491,234
$ 8,924,827 $ 4,802,314 $ 41228613
Accumulated Net book
2016 Cost amortization value
Land $ 57,844 3 - $ 57,944
Buildings 6,866,917 3,186,048 3,680,869
Furniture and equipment 1,714,657 1,352,962 361,695
$ 8,639,518 $ 4,539,010 $ 4,100,508




BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

5. Accounts payable:

2017 2016

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 122,787 $ 92,678
Wages and benefits payable 305,476 293,743
Vacation payable 180,397 208,337
$ 608,660 $ 594,758

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are government remittances payable of
$131,864 (2016 - $120,390), which includes amounts payable for payroll deductions, workers’

compensation, and medical service plan premiums.

6. Long-term debt:

2017 2016
First mortgage on the land and building with blended monthly
payments of $15,346, principal and interest, with interest
at 1.64% per annum. The mortgage was due on October 1,
2016. The Society receives a monthly mortgage interest
subsidy of $2,197 from BC Housing to reduce the effective
interest incurred by the Society $ - $ 106,834
Less current portion - 106,834
Long-term portion $ 5 3 %
7. Post-employment benefit liability:
2017 2016
Post-employment benefit liability, beginning of year $ 388,969 $ 425359
Increase (decrease) during the year due to:
Current service cost 26,509 25,403
Interest cost 13,952 12,335
Benefits paid (39,135) (68,611)
Remeasurement gain (17,788) (5,517)
Post-employment benefit liability, end of year 372,507 388,969
Less current portion 54,204 68,347
Long-term portion $ 318,303 $ 320,622

10



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

7. Post-employment benefit liability (continued):

10.

Under the terms of the employer's union contracts, employees with ten years of service and
having reached a certain age are entitied to receive special payments upon retirement (or other
circumstances specified in the collective agreement). These payments are based upon
accumulated sick leave credits and entitiements for each year of service. The liability for amounts
which may become payable to retiring employees has been estimated by actuarial valuation

using a measurement date of March 31, 2016.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the accumulated benefit obligation
include a discount rate of 3.0%, expected future inflation rates of 1.5% and expected long term

salary increases of 2.5%.

Replacement reserve:

2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year 219,149 $ 225972
Current year's provision 14,265 14,265
Current year's expenditures (9,972) (21,088)
Balance, end of year 223,422 $ 219,149
Capital grants:

2017 2016
Capital grants, unexpended, beginning of year 340,000 $ 180,766
Capital grants received during year - 336,625
Capital grants expended during year (119,416) (61,262)
Capital grants expended in previous years - (126,129)
Capital grants, unexpended, end of year 220,584 $ 340,000
Other revenues:

2017 2016
Social living 32,888 $ 27767
Dietary 19,298 15,522
Other funding 29,635 31,424

81,821 $ 74713

11



BECKLEY FARM LODGE SOCIETY

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2017

11.

12.

Pension plan:

The Society and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the “plan”), a jointly
trusteed pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for overseeing the management of the plan, including investment of the assets and
administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan. Basic pension
benefits provided are defined. The plan has about 189,000 active members and approximately
85,000 retired members.

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan
and the adequacy of plan funding. The most recent valuation as at December 31, 2015 indicated
a $2,224 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The next
valuation will be as at March 31, 2017 with results available in early 2018. The Society paid
$318,697 for employer contributions to the plan in fiscal 2017 (2016 - $298,186).

Financial risks management:
(a) Interest rate risk:

The Society’s long-term debt and term deposits have a fixed interest rate until the various
renewal dates. The Society is not subject to interest rate risk maturity or disposition of term
deposits. Long-term debt was fully settled during the 2017 fiscal year.

(b) Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions and credit exposure to
accounts and other receivables balances. The Society assesses the credit guality of the
counterparties, dealing only with high credit quality financial institutions, taking into account
their financial position, past experience, and other factors. The operations of the Society were
transferred to BCS on April 1, 2017 and liquidity risk also subsequently assessed by the
recipient Society.

(c) Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society will be unablie to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis
or at a reasonable cost. The Society manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating
requirements. The Society prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient
funds to fulfill its obligations. There has been no change to risk exposures from 2016.

(d) Currency risk:

The Society is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are held in Canadian
dollars. There has been no change to risk exposures from 2016.

12
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APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

V l C TO R ' A (Section 224 of the Community Charter)

IDENTIFICATION OF APPLICANT:
The Bateman Foundation

Organization name:

Are you registered under the Sociefies Act? Yes v No
Are you a registered charity? Yes » No
300 - 470 Belleville St, Victoria, BC V8V 1W9

Mailing Address:

Peter Ord peter.ord @bateman centre 09
Contact Person: Email Address:

250-940-3626 ext 305
Telephone Number: Fax Number:
Preferred method of application reminder Email v Mail

PROPERTY {complete a separate form for each property)
01091043 300 - 470 Belleville St

Folio Number: Address:

Legal Description:
g f

‘ Province of BC
Registered Owner (if different than above):

ABOUT YOUR ORGANIZATION: Please provide a brief description of the goals and
objectives of the organization.

The Bateman Foundation, a national public charity, inspires a lasting
relationship with nature through the lens of art, and is currently one of the
only non-profits in Canada primarily using artwork to promote a connection to
nature and the environment. One of the Foundation’s main projects is the
Robert Bateman Centre, showcasing over 80 works of Robert Bateman
spanning his seven decades as one of Canada’s premier artists. Located in
Victoria's inner harbour, the Centre houses a gallery and gift shop, and hosts
a rotation of exhibits and educational and public programming.

PRINCIPAL USE OF THIS PROPERTY Please provide a brief description of the principal
use of the property and how this use benefits the community.

The Robert Bateman Centre Gallery displays over 80 works by Robert
Bateman and houses the definitive collection of his work spanning over
seven decades as one of Canada's most influential painters. The gallery
sees 30,000 visitors annual, many of them comped through library pass
programs and community support. We offer both informal and curriculum
linked educational programs and a rotating exhibit space where both
emerging and professional artists with a focus on nature are displayed. We
have partnered with many local NGOs (like GOERT and Surfrider) on our
exhibitions and have also worked closely with First Nations groups to tell their
stories and display their artwork. Qur summer exhibit will feature work from a
Haida Gwaii collaboration. We aim to inspire all visitors with a lasting
refationship with nature that will lead to better well-being and health. We have
recently started a partnership with Anxiety BC to aid youth with mental heaith
iISSues.



APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF "FOR 2017-2019

V l C TO R l A {Section 224 of the Community Charter)

S. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY: Please provide a brief description of any commercial activities
that your organization conducts on this property.
On level 1 of the Steamship Terminal, the Foundation operates the Robert
Bateman Gallery Gift Shop. Items sold in the store are chosen to illustrate a
clearn connection to art and design with a particular emphasis on the natural
world. We also sell Robert Bateman books and prints. Funds raised through
sales go directly back into the Foundation. The Gallery also generate
revenue through admissions, public programming, and venue rentals. These
funds are also invested back into the work of the Foundation.

6. LEASED SPACE: Please attach any and all lease agreements for any portion of the
identified property that your organization rents or leases to another organization or individual

7. CATEGORY: Please sslect the applicable permissive tax exemption category for which you
are applying. For further explanation of permissive tax exemplion categories please read the
full text of the Permissive Tax Exemption policy found at www victoria.ca/parmissive.

Social Service Arts & Cultural Facility v
Place of Worship D Athletic/Recreational Facility
Rail/Track Property D

Educational Facility. Independent School Classification: Group 1 2 3 4

Supportive Housing
» Temporary or transitional housing

s Treatment program
s Permanent facility
*  Supportive staff

s  Group home

e

» Special needs/disability housing

8. PUBLIC ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: All recipients of City of Victoria permissive tax exemptions
are required to publicly acknowledge the exemption. How does your organization plan on
publicly acknowledging the exemption? '

The City of Victoria will be acknowledged on our website, annual reports, and
donor wall. Social media posts (on twitter, Facebook, and instagram) will also
be made thanking the City.




10.

.

APPLICATION FORM FOR PERMISSIVE
EXEMPTION FROM PROPERTY TAXATION
CITY OF FOR 2017-2019

V I CTO R l A {Section 224 of the Community Charter)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Attach your most recent financial statements,

PROPERTY OWNERSHIP: Do you plan on selling any portion of the property during

2017 - 20187

Yes No v

DECLARATION:

I am an authorized signing officer of the organization and | certify that the information given in
this application is correct. Should a permissive tax exemption be granted on the above listed
property. | agree {o the following terms.

« If the property is sold prior to the exemption expiration, the organization will remit to the
City an amount equal to the taxes that would have otherwise been payable to the City by
a non-exempt owner,

+« The property use will be in compliance with all applicable municipal policies and bylaws

* The organization will publicly acknowledge the permissive tax exemption granted by the

w o »Fb Executive Director
Signature ! Paosition
Peter Ord May 30, 2018

Name (please print) Date
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N Downtown: Waestshore: Collins Barrow Victoria Ltd
w ‘ 645 Fort Street 967 Langford Parkway Chartered Professional Accountants
COLL'NS Suite 540 Suite 218 T 250.386.0500

B ARROW Victoria, BC Victoria, BC F 250.386.6151
A VBW 1G2 Canada V9B 0A5 Canada www.collinsbarrow.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
The Bateman Foundation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Bateman Foundation, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2017, and the statements of
revenues and expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the

- preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

S
e WY COLLINS
- 1 '~ BARROW
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Basis for Qualified Opinion

-~ In common with many not-for-profit organizations, The Bateman Foundation derives revenue
from fundraising activities and donations the completeness of which is not susceptible to
satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, verification of these revenues was limited to the
amounts recorded in the records of The Bateman Foundation. Therefore, we were not able to
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to fundraising or donation revenue,
excess of revenues over expenses, and cash flows from operations for the year ended
December 31, 2017, current assets and net assets as at December 31, 2017.

— Qualified Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Foundation as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Colling Earsow Victoria (74,

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

May 22, 2018
Victoria, B.C.

, Y CcoLLINS
« BARROW



THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash 129.313 148.847
Restricted cash 14.764 54.438
Accounts receivable 20.020 20.814
Inventory 33,196 37415
Prepaid expenses 47.067 43.761
246.360 305.293
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 3) 160.363 354.781
ARTWORK COLLECTION 390.933 5390935
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net of accumulated amortization of $133) 9.575 -
LONG TERM INVENTORY 176.33 -
1.183.572 1.251.011
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts pavable (Note 4) 132.867 90.345
Deterred revenue 483 7.857
Deferred contributions related to future programs (Note 3 14.764 54458
Current portion of promissory note - 10427
148.116 163.087
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL
ASSETS (Note 6) 91.140 287.972
239.256 451.059
NET ASSETS
INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS AND ARTWORK COLLECTION 660.159 637.744
INTERNALLY RESTRICTED - 100,000
UNRESTRICTED 284.157 42.208
944316 799,952
$  1.183.572 1.251,011

Approved By The Directors

Director

Director




THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

General Programs Capital and Internally
Operations (Schedule 1) Artwork Restricted 2017 2016

REVENUE
Donations $ 404.654 $ - $ - $ - $ 404.654 548.179
Deferred contributions - 54.459 196.832 - 251291 208.854
Gallery - 141,138 - - 141.138 174.961
Gift shop 356.017 - - - 356.017 297.355
Gaming - 39.200 - - 39.200 39.200
Rental and other - 28.635 - - 28.635 17.085
Donations in kind 177.317 - - - 177.317 -
Rovalty 14,987 - - - 14.987 13.250

952.975 263.432 196.832 - 1.413.239 1.298.884
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 154,257 311,988 - - 466.245 368977
Amortization - - 205,833 - 205.833 215.386
Rental 20204 181.839 - - 202.043 184.290
Sub-contractors 11.037 44.140 - - 33.177 86.736
Purchases 120,969 6.874 - - 127 843 100,781
Advertising and promotion 6.005 88.682 - - 94.687 88.719
Office and administrative 31.319 33.720 - - 65.039 51.998
Events - 26412 - - 26412 30.762
Fundraising 6.937 - - - 6937 668
Business development 1.609 14.533 - - 16,142 17.882
Amortization of intangible assets 68 68 - - 136 600
Professional fees 5.535 1.845 - - 7.380 7.778
Victoria Foundation grant - - - - - -

357.940 710.101 205,833 - 1.273.874 1.154.577
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ 593.035 $ (446.669) § (9.000) § ~ $ 139.365 144307




THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Invested in

General Capital and Internally
Operations Programs Artwork Restricted 2017 2016
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF
YEAR 42.208 $ - $ G57.744 $ 100.000 799.952 $ 655.645
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over
expenses 395,035 (446.669) (9.001) - 139.365 144307
Purchase of capital assets (11.416) - 11416 - - -
Transfer of income (342.169) 442.169 - (100.000) s -
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 283.658 b (4.500)  $ 660,159 $ - 939.317 $ 799.952




THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 3 139365  § 144.307
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of capital assets 205.833 215.386
Amortization of intangible assets 133 600
Donations in kind (177.317) -
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets (196.833) (208.854)
(28.817) 1531.439
Changes in non-cash working capital (Note 7) 1.141 (33.684)
(27.676) 115,755
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (11.416) (9.257)
Purchase of intangible assets (9.710) =
(21.126) (9.237)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Repavment of promissory note (10.426) (31.279)
(10.426) (31.279)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW (39.228) 75.219
Cash - beginning of vear 203.303 128.087
CASH - END OF YEAR 3 144.077 $ 203.300
CASH CONSISTS OF:
Cash $ 129313 $ 148.847
Restricted cash 14.764 34438

$ 144077 $ 203.305




THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Bateman Foundation (the "Foundation") is incorporated under the Canada Not-for-Profit Corporations Act.
The Foundation's principal business activity is to promote the preservation and sustainability of the
environment by establishing and maintaining an art gallery to perpetuate. protect. enhance and promote the
artistic and cultural legacy of nature-inspired artists. The Foundation is a registered charitv under the Income
Tax Act and 1s exempt from income tax.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations.

Inventory

Inventory 1s valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value with the cost being determined on a first-in.
tirst-out basis.

Capital assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are amortized over
their estimated useful lives at the following rates and methods:

Equipment 5 vears straight-line method
Computer equipment 3 vears straight-line method
Computer software 3 vears straight-line method
Furniture and fixtures 5 vears straight-line method
Lighting 12 vears straight-line method
Leaschold improvements 5 vears straight-line method

Additions, net of disposals are amortized at half rates.

Capital assets acquired during the vear but not placed into use are not amortized until they are placed into use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are valued at cost and are amortized using the straight line method over 3 vears.

(continites)



THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Bateman Foundation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions with fund accounting for
general operations.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the vear in which the related expenses are incurred.
Contributions restricted for capital purposes are amortized to revenue on the same basis and rate as the related

assets.

Unrestricted contributions and internally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or

receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Gift shop and gallerv income is recognized as revenue when services are provided or products are delivered to
the customer. Gallery rental revenue is recognized as revenue when services are provided.

Fundraising revenue is recognized as revenue when the related event occurs,

Non-monetary donations

Donations of artwork. other than works of art for the gallery's permanent collection. are recorded at fair market
value based on independent appraisals. Permanent collection donations are recognized at fair market value and
are recorded as an expense at the time of acquisition.

Individuals. arts organizations and others contribute numerous hours each vear to the Foundation and gallery.
Because of the difficulty of determining the value of such services. these contributions are not recognized in the
financial statements except where the services would otherwise be budgeted and acquired and fair market value
can be determined.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aftect the reported amount of assets
and habilities. disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any
adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Financial instruments policy

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods. financial assets
with actively traded markets are reported at fair value. with any unrealized gains and losses reported in income.
All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost. and tested for impairment at each reporting date.
Transaction costs on the acquisition. sale. or issue of financial instruments are expensed when incurred.



THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

3.  CAPITAL ASSETS
2017 2016
Cost Accumulated Net book Net book
amortization value value
Equipment $ 47336 % 41929 $ 3607 % 15114
Computer equipment 31.028 27.889 3.139 8348
Computer software 84.048 74.896 9.152 582
Furniture and fixtures 56.295 48.277 8.018 19.003
Lighting 69.606 26.102 43.504 49304
[.easchold improvements 856310 765363 90.945 262.230
$ 1144823 § 984.458 § 160365 $ 334.781
4 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Included 1n accounts payable are government remittances (other than income taxes). These include. for
example. federal and provincial sales taxes. payroll taxes. health taxes, and workers' safety insurance premiums.
The following government remittances were pavable at vear end:
2017 2016
Emplovee deductions pavable $ 13.475 $ 7.689
Goods and services tax pavable 5.617 6310
Provincial sales tax pavable 2.715 2.505
$ 21,807 $ 16.704
5. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED FUTURE PROGRAMS

Recognized in

Opening Additions revenue Ending

Legacy project $ 16.154 % - $ 16.154  § -
FEducation program 23.305 2.764 23305 2.764

Urban Sanctuary Project 15.000 - 15.000 -
BC 130 Grant - 12.000 - 12.000
$ 54459 $ 14.764 3 54439 % 14.764

The Bateman Foundation’s legacy project uses Robert Bateman's artwork and philosophy to foster social
dialogue. civic engagement and multifaceted learning to promote environmental stewardship on a national and
mternational scale. The Legacy project works with an extensive network of non-government. corporate. social
and artistic partners to meet its long term objectives.

Education program funds are to be used to support the development and delivery of the Outdoor Educational
Program at the Robert Bateman Centre.

The Urban Sanctuary Project 1s a community initiative that aims to inspire others to become involved in the
practices ot a healthy ecosystem. with a special focus on Migratory Bird Sanctuaries.



THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017
6. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL ASSETS
Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent externally restricted contributions received for the
acquisition of capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital contributions 1s recorded as revenue on the
statement of operations.
2017 2016
Deferred capital contributions. beginning of vear $ 287.972 3 496 826
Amortization of deferred contributions (196.832) (208.854)
Deterred capital contributions, end of vear 3 91.140 3 287.972
7. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL
2017 2016
Accounts receivable $ 794 % (10.193)
Inventory 2219 10.395
Long term inventory 980 -
Accounts pavable 47.520 (36.466)
Deterred contributions related to future programs (39.694) 7.116
Prepaid expenses {3.306) (11.636)
Deferred revenue (7.372) 5.120
$ 1,141 3 (35.684)
8. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Foundation has a long term lease with respect to its premises expiring March 31. 2018. The lease contains
rencwal options. The Foundation is responsible for a proportionate amount of common costs for the leased
building.

Future minimum lease pavments as at December 31, 2017, are as follows:

2018 $ 89.810
2019 84.251
2020 83315
2021 87.192
2022 88.939

3 435,727




THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

9.  VICTORIA FOUNDATION FUND
2017 2016
Opening balance. market value $ 25.563 $ 23917
Net return on investments 2.115 2,549
Subtotal 27.678 26.466
Grants paid (824) (720)
Administration fees (197) (183)
$ 26,657 3 25.563

The Foundation established a fund held by The Victoria Foundation, Under the agreement of the fund. the
Foundation is the beneficiary of the fund and is entitled to receive grants from the fund. The amount of the
grant is at the discretion of The Victoria Foundation and any unpaid amounts carry forward until paid. The
current amount available to grant is $923 and is included in accounts receivable at vear-end.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Foundation 1s exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following provides
information about the Foundation's risk exposure and concentration as of December 31, 2017.

Credit nsk

Credit nisk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations. The Foundation is
exposed to credit risk from customers. The Foundation has a minimal number of customers to whom credit is
provided

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Foundation is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt of funds from its customers
and donors and accounts payable. The Foundation follows strict adherence to budget and programs / projects

are not commenced until funding support is reasonably in place.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the value of a financial mstrument might be adverselv affected by a change in
the iterest rates. The Foundation is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.



THE BATEMAN FOUNDATION

PROGRAMS (Schedule 1)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Public
Gallery programming Legacy 2017
REVENUE $ 208.973 38.308 16.154 3 263.432
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 185153 110.943 15.892 311988
Rental 181.839 181.839
Purchases - 6.874 - 6.874
Advertising and promotion 36.371 32311 - 88.682
Sub-contractors 19311 12.139 12.690 44,140
Events - Bateman Exhibit 9.523 10.540 6.349 26412
Office and administrative 29431 3.724 565 33.720
Amortization of intangible assets 68 - - 68
Professional fees 1.843 - - 1.845
Business development - 6459 8.074 14.533
483.541 182.990 43,570 710.101
DEFICIENCY OF EXPENSES
OVER REVENUE 3 (274.568) {144.682) (27.416) % (446.669)






